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December 18, 2014

Board of Directors

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
100 Constitution Plaza, 6™ Floor

Hartford, CT 06103

We are pleased to present the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority’s (the “Authority™)
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report prepared for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Authority.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is
designed both to protect the Authority’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Authority’s financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the
Authority’s comprehensive framework of internal control has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Authority’s financial statements have been audited by SaxBST LLP, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2014 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the Authority’s
financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is presented in the financial section of
this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(“MD&A”). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read
in conjunction with it. The Authority’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report
of the independent auditors.
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PROFILE OF THE AUTHORITY

The Authority was created by the State of Connecticut (the “State™) under Public Act 14-94 (the
“Act”) which became effective on June 6, 2014. The Authority constitutes a successor authority
to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority {(CRRA). In FY 2014 it assumcd control over
all of CRRA’s assets, rights, duties, and obligations. It now continues CRRA’s ongoing
business. The Authority is a public instrumentality and political subdivision of the State and is
included as a component unit in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Considering the nature and scope of the Authority’s designation as CRRA’s successor, the
Authority’s financial statements reflect all operating and non-operating revenues and expenses
for the period ending June 30, 2014, and all assets, liabilities and the net position of the
Authority as of June 30, 2014, including all financial activities of CRRA during this period prior
to assumption by the Authority.

Under the Act, the Authority’s purpose continues to be the planning, design, construction,
financing, management, ownership, operation and maintenance of solid waste disposal, volume
reduction, recycling, intermediate processing, resource recovery and related support facilities
necessary to carry out the State’s Solid Waste Management Plan. The Authority continues to
provide solid waste management services to municipalities, regions and persons within the state
by receiving solid wastes at Authority facilities, recovering resources from such solid wastes,
and generating revenues from such services sufficient for the Authority to operate on a self-
sustaining basis.

The Act established a new consultative partnership between the Authority and the State’s
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) specifically for redevelopment of
the Authority’s Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS), and generally for the development of
new waste management industries, technologies and commercial enterprises on property owned
by the Authority. The Act charged DEEP with revising the State’s solid waste management plan
and undertaking these consultative efforts consistent with the revised plan. The Act also
transferred CRRA’s prior role in statewide recycling education to a newly created “Recycle CT
Foundation”. The Authority continued to provide recycling education facilities and services to
its customers as of June 30, 2014.

CRRA'’s original core mission was to develop a network of resource recovery and related
facilities within the State to move the State away from the process of landfilling its municipal
solid waste. Facilities were constriicted in Hartford, Preston, Bridgeport and Wallingford which
have historically been known as the Mid Connecticut, Southeast Rridgeport and Wallingford
projects respectively. CRRA secured financing, facility developer, operator and customer
contracts, and administered these projects throughout their various stages over the last four
decades. While the initial underlying contracts for the Southeast Project remain in effect, those
for Mid Connecticut, Bridgeport and Wallingford have expired resulting in a distribution and/or
reformation of project assets which formed the foundation for CRRA’s core project / division
and financial structure as of the date the Authority assumed control. The Authority continues to
recognize CRRA'’s core project / division and financial structure outlined below.

Mid Connecticut Project - CRRA retained title to the resource recovery facility in Hartford

(Souin vieadows), aii support facilities and iand when the initiai underiying project coniracts
expired. CRRA assigned these assets to its Property Division and put them into service in the
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form of the Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS). The CSWS presently provides solid
waste disposal services to 51 municipalities in the State and is one of the primary operating
divisions of the Authority. The Mid Connecticut Project also remains active administratively,
under the Authority’s control, for project close out activity including closure of the Hartford
landfill and funds distribution.

Southeast Project - CRRA issued its Resource Recovery Revenue Bonds, and subsequently
Refunding Bonds, (the “Bonds”), to finance construction of this resource recovery facility
located in Preston and the supporting Special Capital Reserve Fund held by the State Treasurer.
CRRA owned the facility and leased it to a private operator. The private operator runs the
facility pursuant to a Service Agreement with CRRA, under which the CRRA is obligated to
meet certain solid waste delivery requirements. To meet these requirements, the Southeastern
Connecticut Regional Resource Recovery Authority (SCRRRA) was established and SCRRRA
entered into agreements with its twelve member municipalities requiring them to deliver waste to
SCRRRA for disposal at the facility. Under a Bridge and Management Agreement between
CRRA and SCRRRA, the Authority causes the facility to be operated and maintained and
SCRRRA causes its members to deliver waste. The Authority has assumed CRRA’s interests
and obligations under the Bonds, lease, Service Agreement, Bridge and Management Agreement.

Bridgeport Project — CRRA retained title to the land and a major recycling facility located in
Stratford upon expiration of initial project underlying contracts. It transferred title to the
resource recovery facility to the operator, but retained rights to a portion of the facility’s waste
processing capacity through June 30, 2014. CRRA leased the land to the operator and used its
retained facility capacity to serve the waste processing needs of twelve towns in the Southwest
area of the State. The processing of waste through this retained facility capacity is reflected in
CRRA’s “Southwest Division” which was formed for this purpose but ceased operations on June
30, 2014. Revenue from the facility lease was assigned to the Property Division. The Authority
has assumed CRRA’s interests and obligations in these assets and reports this activity consistent
with the structure noted above.

Wallingford Project — Title to the resource recovery facility and underlying land was
transferred to the operator. While no fixed assets were retained by CRRA, the Authority has
assumed CRRA’s interests and obligations with respect to certain ongoing project close out and
asset transfer activities.

Property Division — All Capital Assets retained by CRRA upon expiration of the Mid
Connecticut and Bridgeport projects other than those associated with landfills are assigned to this
division. The division derives net income primarily from the lease of property and electric
generating peaking unit participation in various ISO New England energy markets. The
Authority has assumed CRRA’s interests and obligations in the Property Division and reports
this activity consistent with the structure noted above.

Landfill Division — As of June 6, 2014 the Authority assumed CRRA’s ownership interests in
three closed landfills in the State, and certain adjoining properties, assigned to the Landfill
Division. Certain plant and equipment installations associated with these landfills, and the
leased Hartford landfill, are also assigned to this division. The Authority has also assumed
CRRA’s interests and obligations pursuant to State statute and related agreements with DEEP
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concerning the transfer of CRRA’s landfill post closure care obligations to DEEP and the
transfer of funds reserved for post close care activities to the State.

The Authority is authorized to have a board consisting of eleven directors and eight ad-hoc
members. The Governor appoints three directors and all eight ad-hoc members. The remaining
eight directors are appointed by various state legislative leaders. All appointments require the
advice and consent of both houses of the General Assembly.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Authority is subject to certain statutory obligations and contractual commitments that are
intended to ensure reasonable prices for the facilities and services it provides, yet challenge the
Authority’s financial performance when considered in the context of the wholesale energy
markets it participates in. These obligations, commitments and challenges are most prevalent
within the CSWS. The CSWS business model relies on wholesale energy revenue to keep solid
waste disposal fees below the levels that trigger customer contract termination provisions. There
are limited options available to the Authority through other divisions to relieve pressure on tip
fees when energy revenues are low,

The business model for CSWS provides that participating town waste disposal fees (“tip fees”)
are to be set at the level necessary to fund the net cost of operation of the CSWS. The net cost of
operation is the total operating budget less non-disposal fee revenue where non-disposal fee
revenue primarily consists of the sale of electricity generated from the CSWS waste to energy
facility and use of the CSWS by non-members. Consequently, price volatility in the wholesale
energy market directly impacts the tip fees charged to member towns. Some of the Authority’s
member town contracts include tip fee opt-outs above which the towns may terminate the
contract. Unfortunately, wholesale energy prices in recent years have been sufficiently volatile
to cause tip fees to approach this opt-out level. To address this matter, management established a
“Tip Fee Stabilization Fund” which may be drawn upon to support the CSWS net cost of
operation when wholesale energy prices are low, thereby avoiding the opt out price, and which is
to be reimbursed as wholesale energy prices rebound. The Tip Fee Stabilization Fund was
established within the Authority’s Property Division with income from the Authority’s electric
generating peaking units (commonly known as the “Jets”) as the primary source of funding.

The Jets operate subject to certain federal and State air quality and emissions regulations which
require issuance of a “Trading Order” permitting them to run for a limited number of hours.
While the Authority’s existing Trading Order extends through May 31, 2017, the Capacity
Supply Obligations it has incurred to ISO New England will soon extend through May 31, 2019.
To address this matter, management has commenced initiatives to determine the feasibility of
retrofitting the peaking units to meet air quality standards, “delisting” the peaking units from the
pool of electric generating resources available to ISO New England, extending the Trading Order
as a stop gap measure or transferring these Capacity Supply Obligations to third parties through
established processes. These efforts will determine the sustainability of electric generating
revenue from the Jets and therefore the Authority’s ability to sustain the Tip Fee Stabilization
Fund during extended periods of depressed wholesale energy prices.



In the intervening months between completion of the Authority’s fiscal year 2014 audited
financial report and completion of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, management
has also completed the auction process to contract with a third party for the purchase of a portion
of CSWS electric generation as a hedge against volatile wholesale energy prices. This process
has resulted in a fixed price for approximately half of the CSWS electric generation at prices
sufficient to maintain tip fees below opt-out levels for 18 months commencing January 1, 2015.
The non-contracted portion of CSWS electric generation will continue to be sold in the
wholesale energy markets. Additional cost control measures have been implemented to manage
the budget model within the confines of the opt-out price. These cost control measures,
however, are challenged by the age and utility of the CSWS waste to energy facility, the first
such facility originally put in service by CRRA through conversion of an existing coal plant in
the mid-1980s.

The Authority is statutorily obligated to provide its facilities and services on a financially self-
sufficient basis and to redistribute any surplus revenues it receives in a manner that reduces the
price paid by the end users of its facilities and services. For FY 2014 operations, the Authority
declared as surplus approximately $422,000 in recycling revenues which were proportionally
rebated to 37 member municipalities at the rate of $10 for each ton of recyclable material
delivered to the CSWS recycling facility. Subsequent to completion of the Authority’s fiscal
year 2014 audit, the Authority also distributed approximately $600,000 in surplus funds to the
five member municipalities of the Wallingford Project taking a major step forward in completing
certain statutory and contractual obligations related to the close out and transfer of this project.
In addition to the distribution of surplus funds, the Authority compensates its host communities
(municipalities in which waste to energy and transfer station facilities are located) through
payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTs). In FY 2014, the Authority paid a total of $3.2 million in
PILOTSs to Hartford, Preston, Watertown, Essex and Torrington.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND DEVELOPMENTS

During FY 2014, The Authority implemented certain actions mandated by the State of
Connecticut in its Public Act 13-247 and Section 99 of Public Act 13-184. These acts required
the Authority to transfer all legally required obligations resulting from the closure of its landfills
located in Hartford, Ellington, Waterbury, Wallingford and Shelton to DEEP, and to transfer up
to $35 million of the Authority’s resources to the State’s General Fund.

The transfer of post closure care obligations was addressed by a Memorandum of Understanding
(“MOU”) between the Authority and DEEP pursuant to which DEEP reimbursed the Authority
for certain post closure care and maintenance work while the parties undertook a transition
process for DEEP to assume responsibility for performance of the work. As of June 30, 2014,
the Authority continued to perform landfill post closure work at four landfills subject to
reimbursement by DEEP. However, the Hartford landfill had not been certified as closed, and
the Authority had not entered the post- closure care period for this landfill. DEEP is required to
reimburse the Authority for post-closure care work at the Hartford Landfill, and to transition to
performance of the work, as of the date the Authority submits its Closure Certification Report to
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The transfer of up to $35 million of the Authority’s resources to the State as required by Public
Act 13-184 was addressed by resolution of the Authority’s Board of Directors. The Authority
received written confirmation from the State that the transfer of $31 million will fully satisfy the
requirements of Public Act 13-184 and the Board directed the transfer of $31 million in stages
based on the occurieiice of ceitain relevant milestones that included i) execution of the MOU, ii)
issuance of a purchase order providing for reimbursement of the Authority’s ongoing work
during the transition period, iii) transfer of certain federal and state licenses, permits and orders,
iv) termination of certain trust agreements, and v) action required by certain local government
policy boards. As of June 30, 2014, all of these milestones have been achieved and the Authority
has transferred $31 million to the State.

The implementation of Public Acts 13-247 and 13-184 is reflected on the Authority’s Financial
Statements as of June 30, 2014 as a liquidation of $31 million in trust and reserve funds
previously held as financial assurance for post closure care obligations, a write off of $35.8
million in long term liabilities associated with such post closure care obligations, and recognition
of $4.8 million in non-operating revenue representing the difference between such funds and
liabilities. An inter-fund loan from the Authority’s Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve to the
Authority’s Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS), representing start up working capital for
CSWS, has also been written off the Authority’s Financial Statements as there is no ongoing
need for this post closure reserve. This $7.9 million transaction is now reflected as a
contribution from the Landfill Division to CSWS rather than a CSWS liability due to other funds
as presented in the Authority’s Financial Statements as of June 30, 2013.

The Authority’s closure obligation for the Hartford landfill was not transferred to DEEP pursuant
to these public acts and the Authority has made substantial progress in closing the landfill as
fiscal year 2014 came to a close and since completion of the fiscal year 2014 audit. Construction
of a one-megawatt solar energy-generating facility (“Solar EGF”) on top of the landfill was
completed with the Authority receiving approval from CL&P to interconnect the project to the
electrical distribution system on June 17, 2014. This is the first Solar EGF to be built on a closed
landfill in Connecticut and consists of 3,993 photovoltaic panels that will generate up to one
megawatt of electricity. The Solar EGF will generate renewable energy credits or “RECs”,
which will be sold to CL&P under a Standard Contract for the Purchase and Sale of Connecticut
Class 1 Renewable Energy Credits. The Authority subsequently completed its Closure
Certification Report documenting all of the work undertaken to close the landfill in an
environmentally sound manner consistent with applicable law and the closure plan developed for
the project. The Closure Certification Report was submitted to DEEP on December 5, 2014
triggeiing its obligation under the MOU to reimbursc the Authority for post closurc work at the
Hartford Landfill. While the Authority is no longer responsible for the post-closure care of its
landfills, the public acts and related MOU did not result in the transfer of any real property or
infrastructure constituting Capital Assets of the Authority’s Landfill Division.

Looking forward, one of the core objectives of the Public Act 14-94 which created the Authority
and established it as successor to CRRA was to set a process in motion, with specific roles and
deadlines for the Authority, DEEP and the private sector that will bring about the redevelopment
of the aging CSWS. The major milestones of this initiative include issuance of a Request for
Proposals by January 1, 2016, completion of feasibilities by short-listed respondents by January
1, 2017, submission of final redevelopment proposals by July 1, 2017 and selection of a winning
proposal by December 31, 2017. While the nature, cost and funding mechanisms for this
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redevelopment are not yet determined, the underlying legislation did include proposal selection
criteria sensitive to these matters. The Act requires DEEP to consider the level of investment
proposed and whether the proposal is in the best interest of the municipalities under contract with
the Authority, including maintenance or reduction of tip fees. The Act further provides that the
selection of a final proposal by DEEP, in consultation with the Authority, is not to be construed
as a legislative mandate that otherwise would increase the “opt out tip fee” established in certain
municipal contracts. As this process moves forward, the Authority will need to remain vigilant
in preserving and establishing the statutory, contractual and financial framework essential to a
successful redevelopment project.

Relevant Financial Policies — The Authority has developed and maintains a strong policy
portfolio aimed at safeguarding its assets, ensuring its financial statements, books and records are
accurate and reliable, and that its financial interests and activities are planned and executed in
accordance with management’s expectations. Specific written policies, reviewed on a periodic
basis, address accounting and financial reporting, development of the annual budget and plan of
operations, cash management and daily receipts, procurement, payments and wire transfers,
expense reimbursements, fixed assets & tagging, as well as signatory approval authorizations.
The Authority undertakes a comprehensive annual budgeting and annual five year forecasting
process, both of which reflect all operating revenues and expenses, reserve requirements and the
estimated net-cost tip fee to be borne by its member municipalities.

THE AUTHORITY’S ECONOMIC CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Authority operates.

Local Economy

The Authority’s “local economy” entails the entire State. The Authority’s solid waste
management projects are situated in Hartford and Preston with additional capacity at facilities in
Bridgeport and Wallingford. Collectively, these systems have served the residents of over 100
municipalities in the State.

Population Characteristics - Connecticut is a highly developed and urbanized state. It is
situated directly between the financial centers of Boston and New York. Connecticut is bordered
by the Long Island Sound, New York, Massachusetts and Rhode Island. More than one-quarter
of the total population of the United States and more than 50% of the Canadian population live
within 500 miles of the State.

The population of Connecticut in 2013 was estimated at 3,596,000 an increase of 100,000 or
3.0% from the 3,496,000 figure of 2004. However, the State’s population growth has slowed
during the past four decades. The 2012 population density was 741 persons per square mile,
compared with 88 for the United States as a whole.

Transportation and Utility Services - Connecticut has an extensive network of expressways
and major arterial highways that provide easy access to local and regional markets. The power
grid that supplies electricity to the entire State is owned and operated by both private and



municipal electrical companies. Transmission lines connect Connecticut with New York,
Massachusetts, and Rhode Island. All electric utilities in the State are members of the New
England Regional Power Pool (operated by ISO New England) and operate as part of the
regional bulk power system, the Regional Transmission Organization for New England.

Personal Income - Connecticut has a high level of personal income; the historic average per
capita income has consistently been among the highest in the nation. This is due to a
concentration of relatively high paying manufacturing jobs along with a higher portion of
residents working in the non-manufacturing sector in such areas as finance, insurance and real
estate as well as educational services. A concentration of major corporate headquarters located
within the State also contributes to the high level of income. Per capita income in 2012 was
$58,908 for Connecticut compared with $42,693 for the nation. Per capita income in 2004 was
$46,174 for Connecticut compared with $33,909 for the nation.

Major industries - Connecticut major industries include Manufacturing; Finance, Insurance and
Real Estate (FIRE); Utilities; Retail Trade; Professional, Business and Personal Services; and
Government. Production in the three concentrated industries — Services; Manufacturing; and
FIRE — accounted for 69.5% of total Connecticut’s Gross State Product’ compared to 68.5% in
2005 and 60.0% for the nation in 2012. This demonstrates that Connecticut’s economy is more
heavily concentrated in a few industries than the nation as a whole and that this concentration has
changed little in recent years.

Defense Industry - One important component of the manufacturing sector in Connecticut is the
defense industry. The State is a leading producer of aircraft engines and parts, helicopters, and
submarines. Approximately one-quarter of the State’s manufacturing employees are employed
in defense-related businesses. This sector’s significance in the State’s economy has declined
considerably since the early 1980s as there has been a marked reduction in the amount of federal
spending earmarked for defense related industries in the State. However, these amounts have
been climbing since federal fiscal year 2001. In federal fiscal year 2012, the State received
$12.7 billion of prime contract awards that accounted as 4.0% of national total awards and
ranked 7™ in total defense dollars awarded, and 2™ in per capita dollars awarded nationwide.
The same fiscal year, the State had $3,531.8 in per capita defense awards, compared to the
national average of $998.6.

Unemployment Rates - The State’s unemployment rate has mirrored the economic recession of
the early 1990s, the economic boom of the late 1990s and the slowdown during the recession of
e canlyp2@00s. "Nike unemplopmeniyiaicin ihesState elimbed e Saab¥in 2000 companedyiolTicny
England’s average of 5.4% and the national average of 6.0%. During the subsequent weak
economic recovery of Connecticut’s average unemployment rate fell to 8.0% for the first ten
months of 2013 compared to the New England’s average of 7.1% and the national average of

7.5% for the same period.

' Gross State Product is the current market value of all final goods and services produced by labor and property
located within the State of Connecticut. Source: State of Connecticut General Obligation Bonds (GAAP Conversion
Bonds — 2013 Series A) dated October 2013.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Connecticut
Resources Recovery Authority for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. This was the twenty-first consecutive year that CRRA achieved this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, CRRA must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Authority believes that
its current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its

eligibility for another certificate.
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ACCOLMT NG TAX , ADVISORY
Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
Hartford, Connecticut

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (Authority)
(formerly known as Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority), a component unit of the State of Connecticut, which
comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

the Authority as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Prior Year Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, were audited by Bollam, Sheedy,

Torani & Co. LLP, which merged with Sax Macy Fromm & Co., PC to form SaxBST LLP as of January 1, 2014, Bollam,
Sheedy, Torani & Co. LLP’s report dated October 1, 2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

ALBANY, NY CLIFTON, N) RINEQLA, NY NEW YORK, NY
1
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis on pages 3 through 19 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not pan of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential pant of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during our audits
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Authority’s basic financial statements. The
combining schedules on pages 43 through 50 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whaole.

Other Information

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 24, 2014, on our
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal control

over financial reporting and compliance.
—
Saph3s7 L f

New York, New York
December 17, 2014
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Materials Innovation and
Recycling Authority’s (the “Authority”) financial performance provides an overview of the
Authority’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction
with the Authority’s financial statements that follow this section. The MD&A is intended to
provide meaningful information to the reader for the current year, and in comparison to prior
years, thereby enhancing the reader’s understanding of the Authority’s financial position and the
results of its operations. Effective June 6, 2014 the State of Connecticut designated the
Authority as successor to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (CRRA). Considering
the nature and scope of the Authority’s designation as CRRA’s successor, described fully in
Note 1.A, the Authority’s financial statements reflect all operating and non-operating revenues
and expenses for the full fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, and all assets, liabilities, deferred
inflows and the net position of the Authority as of June 30, 2014, including all financial activities
of CRRA during this period prior to assumption by the Authority.

In FY 2014, the Authority generated total

operating revenue of $123.4 million, and Change in Net Position
incurred $106.1 million in operating 6,000

o N ! 4,000
expenses before depreciation, resulting in §2_w0 -
operating income before depreciation of s s 2‘0506
$17.3 million. After $16.1 million in § g&g% l l
depreciation and amortization expenses, the =~ §{(8.000
Authority generated $1.2 million in 35}‘3;%,
operating income. The Authority also 5(14,000) Y = .
generated net non-operating revenue of $2.3 2014 2013 2012
million resulting in a total increase in the EChange in net
Authority’s netgposition of $3.5 million. position S35 28 - 3128

Total operating revenues increased by

2.9%, while total operating expenses before depreciation decreased by 5.4%, from fiscal year
2013 to fiscal year 2014. The Authority out-performed budget expectations by generating
operating revenues that were 4.6% above budget, incurring operating expenses before
depreciation that were 6.3% below budget, and operating each of its projects and divisions on a
financially self-sufficient basis according to budget. While the Authority’s total assets decreased
by $47.2 million (19.5%), its total liabilities decreased by $50.7 million (68.4%).

The most significant economic factor with the potential to adversely affect the Authority is its
reliance on wholesale energy revenue to keep solid waste disposal fees for its Connecticut Solid
Waste System (CSWS) below the levels that trigger customer contract termination provisions,
the limited options available to the Authority through its other divisions to relieve this pressure
on tip fees when energy revenues are low, and an anticipated redevelopment of the CSWS in the
context of this business model. Management’s response to this challenge, discussed further
under the Economic Factors and Outlook section of this MD&A, has been to create a “Tip Fee
Stabilization Fund”, undertake certain initiatives necessary to sustain this fund over the long term
by strengthening the Authority’s existing project and division structure, and to position the
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Authority administratively to hedge against wholesale energy price volatility dependent on
market circumstances.

Using This Report

The Authority is an enterprise fund of the State of Connecticut. Enterprise funds are used in
governmental accounting to present activities where fees are charged to external customers for
goods that are sold or services that are rendered. Usually these activities are financed by debt
that is secured solely by a pledge of the operating revenues of that activity.

The Authority's financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. The financial
statements utilize the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities.
This means that all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are
included on its Statement of Net Position, and that all revenues and expenses are recognized
when earned and incurred, respectively, on its Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position.

The Authority's Net Position is presented in three components (i) invested in capital assets, net
of related debt, (ii) restricted, and (iii) unrestricted. Net position presented as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of all significant capital assets owned by the Authority, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced by any outstanding balances of bonds or other debt
related to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Capital assets include
land, improvements to land, easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery,
equipment, infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations
that have an initial useful life beyond one year. Capital assets are depreciated over their useful
lives and periodic depreciation expense is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. Net Position is presented as restricted when constraints are placed on
the Authority’s assets by creditors, grantors, laws or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reflect the operating
revenues and expenses and non-operating revenue and expenses of the Authority for the fiscal
year with the difference representing the change in net position. That change, combined with the
prior year-end net position total, reconciles to the net position total at the end of the current fiscal

year.

The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash activities for the fiscal year resulting from operating
activities, capital and related financing activities, non-capital financing activities and investing
activities. The net result of these activities added to the beginning of the year cash balance
reconciles to the cash balance at the end of the current fiscal year.

Unless otherwise stated, all values presented in this M,D&A are in thousands.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is important to
understanding the information included in the financial statements. They are presented
following this M,D&A and the Authority’s financial statements.

Supplemental Information

Supplemental information includes a Combining Schedule of Net Position (summary), a
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, a Combining
Schedule of Cash Flows, and a Combining Schedule of Net Position (detail). These schedules
segment the Authority’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2014 between the various
operating divisions and waste to energy facilities (projects) comprising the Authority. This
segmentation reflects the terms and conditions of facility operating contracts, service
agreements, related documents and statutes generally providing for the financial self-sufficiency
of such projects and divisions as described further in Note 1 A to the Financial Statements

(Entity and Services). For FY 2014, these projects and divisions include:

» Authority’s General Fund

o Connecticut Solid Waste System
s Mid Connecticut Project

» Southeast Project

» Southwest Division

» Authority’s Property Division

» Authority’s Landfill Division

» Recycling Division

Required Additional Reports

Required additional reports include a report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.
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Statement of Net Position

~F L~ +1. ~ 1 Tl
The net position of the Authority is summarized in Table 1. Net position is a measurement of the

financial condition of the Authority at one point in time. As indicated in Table 1, the Authority’s
net position as of June 30, 2014 (total assets less total liabilities) was $171,766 which represents
a $3,518 (2.1%) increase from the prior year. The $3,518 increase in Net Position is the result of
a decrease in total assets of $47,221 offset by a larger reduction in total liabilities of $50,739.

TABLE 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of June 30,

(Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2013 2012
ASSETS
Current unrestricted assets $ 81,282 $ 111,531 $§ 101,160
Current restricted assets 2,694 6,705 22,875
Total current assets 83,976 118236 124033
Non-current assets:
Restricted mvestments - 8184 8.177
Capital assets, net 110,475 114.859 119,385
Development costs, net 784 1,177 1,576
Total non-current assets 111,259 124220 129,138
TOTAL ASSETS $ 195235 S 242456 S 233173
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Current unrestricted liabilities h) 13,281 3 29,955 $ 7,792
Current restricted liabilities 4,096 2,870 16413
Total current liabilities 17,377 32,825 24205
Long-term unrestricted liabilities 3,500 31,195 42,713
Long-term restricted liabilities - 8,083 8,183
Total long-term liabilities 3,500 39278 50,896
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,877 72,103 75,101
Deferred mflows 2,592 2,105 1,571
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 23,469 74208 76,672
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 110,476 114,859 116,348
Restricted 548 5,058 11,050
Unrestricted 60,742 48331 49,103
TOTAL NET POSITION 171,766 168,248 176,501
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 195235 $ 242456 § 253,173

Assets

The Authority’s total current and non-current assets are further summarized on Table 2. The
$47,221 reduction in total assets is primarily attributable to the expenditure of reserves held
within the Authority’s Mid Connecticut Project and its Landfill Division, which are reflected as
cash and equivalents and restricted investments in Table 2. The expenditure of reserves from the
Mid Connecticut Project relate to landfill closure work at the Hartford Landfill, as well as other
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project closeout activities including settlements and defense of claims discussed further in Note
12. The Mid Connecticut Project’s total assets declined by $16,232 during fiscal year 2014. The
expenditure of reserves from the Authority’s Landfill Division relate primarily to a transfer of
funds to the state as required by state legislation and discussed further in Notes 4 and 11, coupled
with the advance of initial working capital to the Connecticut Solid Waste System reclassified as
a contribution in FY 2014. The Landfill Division's total assets declined by $41,032 during fiscal
year 2014. These reductions were offset partially by a large increase in the Authority’s prepaid
expenses. The increase in prepaid expenses reflects recognition of operating funds advanced to
the Authority’s contract operator of the Hartford (South Meadows) waste to energy facility and
the Authority’s jet turbine — powered electric generating peaking units.

TABLE 2
SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands}

2014 2014 2013 2013
Increase/ Percent Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ {Decrease) [ncrease/
2014 2013 from 2013 (Decrease) 2012 from 2012 (Decrease)
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 38827 S 87559 S (28.732) (328%) S 76331 5 11,228 14.7%
Accounts receivable, net of allowances 14,058 17,073 (3.015) (17.7%) 14,009 3,064 21.9%
[nventory 6,069 6,544 (473) (7.3%) 6,370 174 2.7%
Prepaid expenses 2328 355 1.973 555.8% 4,450 (4.095) (92.0%)
Total Unrestricted Assets 81.282 111531 130.249 (27.1%) 101,160 10371 10.3%
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2.694 6.705 (4011 (59.8%) 22,875 (16,170) (70.7%)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 33976 118.236 {34.260) (29 (%) 124,035 (5,799 (4.7%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted investments . 8,184 (8,184)  (100.0%) 8,177 [ 0.1%
Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net 79,068 84.517 (5,449) (6.4%) 85,262 (745) (0.9%)
Nondepreciable 31,407 30.342 1,065 3.5% 34,123 3,781) (11.1%)
Development costs, net 784 1.177 (393 (33 4%) 1,576 399) (25.3%)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 111259 124.220 1129610 (10.4%) 129,138 (4.918) (3.8%)
TOTAL ASSETS S 195235 S 242456 S (47221)  (19.5%) _§ 253,173 (10,717) (4.2%)
Liabilities

The Authority’s total current and long term liabilities are further summarized on Table 3. The
$50,739 reduction in total liabilities is primarily attributable to reductions in the current and long
term portion of liabilities associated with the closure and post closure care of the Authority’s
landfills. The current liability declined by $15,448 largely due to the progress of work necessary
to close the Hartford Landfill. The long term portion declined by $35,778 largely due to the
transfer of the Authority’s landfill post closure obligations to the state Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection discussed further in Notes 4 and 11. An additional contributing factor
to the reduction in total liabilities is a $2,932 (25.7%) reduction in accrued payables. This is
largely due to the Authority’s payment of a contractor's unamortized investment in recycling
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facility equipment, which was accrued in fiscal year 2013, and required as part of an early
termination of this contract.

TABLE 3
SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND LONG-TERDM LIABILITIES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dellars in Thousands)

2014 2014 2013 2013
Increase. Percent Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) [ncrease (Decrease) Increase
2014 2013 from?20(3 (Decrease) 2012 from 2012 (Decrease)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable trom uncestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landtills S 43 5 14214 S (4171 (99, 7%) S 1330 5 12884 968.7%
Accounts payable 4,740 4311 429 10.0% 1,658 2,653 160.0%
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilitics 3493 11430 (2932)  (25.7%) 4804 6,626 137.9%
Tolal payable {rom unrestiicted assets 13281 29955  (16674) (55 7% 7,792 22,163 284.4%
Payable from restricted assets:
Bonds Payable, net . . +,134 (4.134)  (1000%)
Closure and post-closure care of landhlls - . . 1298 (1298)  (100.0%)
Accounts payable = 33 (33)  (100.0%) 850 (817) {96.1%)
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilties 4,096 2837 1259 44.4% 10,185 (7,348) (72.1%)
Total payable trom restricted assers _40% 2870 1226 2 7% 16467 (8,165) (49.6%)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 17377 32.825 (15,448) 47 1% 24259 13,998 57.7%
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payable fromm unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closurce carc of landfills 27695 (274935) (100 0%) 39213 (11.518) (29.4%)
Other liabilities 3,500 3.500 - 0 0% 3,500 - 0 0%
Total payable from unrestricted assels 3500  3L195 (27.695) (88 8%) 42713 (11.518) 127.0%0)
Pavyable from restricted assets:
Closure and posl-closure care of land[ills - 7367 (7367) (100 0%) 1359 8 01%
Other liabilities _ . 716 i716) (100 0%) 824 {108) (13.1%)
Tolal payable trom restricted assels - 8,083 (8,083) (100 0%) 3.133 (100) (1.2%)
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 3500 39278 (35T (91 1%) 50896 (11618)  (22.8%)
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 20877 S 72103 S (51226) {71 0%\ S 75155 (3.052) (4 1%)
REKIEIERIAE 2592 2105 5 487 23. 1% 1517 588 38.8%
10 I'AL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS (8 23469 S 74208 § (50.739) (68 4%) § 76672 S (2464) (3 2%)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The increase in net position shown on Table 1 was generated from the change in net position
shown on Table 4, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the year
ended June 30, 2014. Changes in net position represent the results of operations of the Authority
(i.e. its net income). The increase in net position for fiscal year 2014 of $3,518 represents a
142.6% increase from the prior year when the Authority’s net position declined by $83,253.

The increase in net position was achieved through a 2.9% increase in total operating revenue,
coupled with a 5.4% decrease in total operating expenses, producing income before depreciation
of $17,280. Operating income (after depreciation) was $1,179 in fiscal year 2014 which
represents a $8,511 (116.1%) increase from fiscal year 2013. The Authority’s operating income
of $1,179 and its net non-operating revenue of $2,339 combine to produce the §3,518 increase in

net position.
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TABLE 4
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Income (loss) before depreciation and amortization and

other non-operating revenues and (expenses)
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) before other non-operating
revenues and (expenses), net
Non-operating revenues (expenses), net
Change m net position
Total net position, beginning of year
Total net position, end of year

Revenues

2014 2013 2012
$ 123362 $ 119866 S 132,043
106,082 112,113 127,799
17,280 7,753 4244
16,101 15,085 16,242
1,179 (7,332) (11,998)
2,339 (921) 5
3,518 (8.253) (11,998)
168,248 176,501 188,499
$ 171,766 $ 168248 $ 176,501

Table 5 summarizes total operating and non-operating revenue.

Operating revenue increased by $3,496 (2.9%) from fiscal year 2013 to fiscal year 2014. This
increase is driven by a substantial $14,190 (33.6%) increase in revenue from the sale of energy
offset by reductions in member service charges, other service charges and other revenue. The
increase in revenue from the sale of energy is largely attributed to energy produced by the
Authority’s CSWS and sold through ISO New England’s wholesale energy markets.

Abnormally cold temperatures in the winter of
2013 are credited with driving up wholesale
energy prices. The average wholesale price
received by CSWS during fiscal year 2014 was
$.0697 per kilowatt hour compared to $.0358
per kilowatt hour in fiscal year 2013. While the
wholesale price increased significantly, the
energy produced declined by 3.2%. Energy
produced by the Southeast Project remained
under contract in fiscal year 2014, independent
of the wholesale market, at an average rate of
approximately $.257 per kilowatt hour.

Operating Revenue by Division ($000)
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The reduction in member and other service charges is directly related to the Authority’s
transition from the Mid Connecticut Project to the CSWS as its primary operating facility. This
transition is described further in Note 1.A. The Mid Connecticut Project closed in FY 2013 with
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the expiration of service agreements and retirement of debt. New service agreements were
established with fees based on cost recovery formulas. Since the cost to operate the CSWS is
lower than the cost to operate the Mid Connecticut Project, service fees and associated revenue
declined in proportion to the lower cost base. Service fees generated through the Southeast
Project and the Southwest Division remained relatively flat.

The reduction in other revenue is attributed to the acceptance of soil at the Hartford Landfill for
disposal as part of the landfill’s closure project. The Authority derived $4,514 in revenue for this
disposal service in FY 2013 which declined to $1,071 in fiscal year 2014 as this aspect of the
closure project was completed. Additional contributing factors are closure of the Authority’s
recycling operation in Stratford and reduced recycling volumes associated with the transition
from the Mid Connecticut Project to the CSWS.

The increase in non-operating revenue is directly related the transfer of the Authority’s landfill
post closure care obligations and related reserves as detailed in Notes 4 and 11.

TABLE 5
SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2014 2013 2013
Increase/ Percent [ncrease/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
2014 2013 trom 2013 (Decrease) 202 from 2012 (Decreasc)
Operating Revenues: B -
Member service charges $ 45588 § 49,145 § (3.557) (7.2%) § 55966 $ (6.82D) (12.2%)
Other service charges 16,513 18,512 (1999  (10.8%) 20,860 (2348) (11.3%)
Energy sales 56451 42,261 14,190 33.6% 46,547 (4.286) (9.2%)
Other operating revenues 4810 9.948 (3.138)  (51.6%) 8,670 1,278 14.7%
Total Operating Revenues [23.362 119,866 3.496 2.9% 132,043 (12,177) (9.2%)
Non-Operating Revenues:
[nvestment mcome 109 139 (30) (21.6%) 192 (53) (27.6%)
Gain on write-off of postclosure liabiities 4,751 - 4,751 100.0% - -
Other income 190 67 123 183.6% 560 (493)  (83.0%)
Total Non-Operating Revenues 5050 206 43H  2351.5% 752 (340) (72 6%)
Total Revenues S128412 $120072 $ 8340 6.9% $ 132,795 § (12,723) (9.6%)

10



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unil of the State of Connecticut

Expenses

Table 6 summarizes total operating
and non-operating expenses.

Operating expenses declined by
$6,031 (5.4%) from fiscal year 2013
to fiscal year 2014.  Significant
contributing factors to this reduction
include reduced estimated liability
for the closure of the Hartford
Landfill, reversed accruals related to
the resolution of contract operating
charges associated with the Mid
Connecticut  Project and other
savings associated with the transition
from Mid Connecticut to CSWS,

Operating Expense by Project / Divislon ($000)
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The $1,584 increase in non-operating expenses is related to settlement activity also with respect

to the Mid Connecticut Project.

TABLE 6

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2014
Increase/

2014
Percent

(Decrease) Increase/

2013 2013
Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/

2014 2013 from 2013 (Decrease) 2012 from 2012 (Decrease)
Operating Expenses:
Solid waste operations § 97583 § 99,194 % (L6l (1.6%) $116261 §$(17067) (14.7%)
Maintenance and utilities 1,313 1,024 289 28.2% 900 124 13.8%
Landfill closure and post-closure (3.392) 1,862 (3.254) (282.2%) 415 1,447 348.7%
Legal services - external 3012 1,209 1,803 149.1% 1,803 (594) (32.9%)
Administrative and operational services 6,191 7.525 (1334)  (17.7%) 7.019 506 7.2%
Distribution to:
Member towns - 810 (310) 100.0% - 810
SCRRRA 1,375 - 1375 100.0% 1,401 (1,400) 0.0%
SWEROC - 489 (439) 100.0% - 489 0.0%
Total Operating Expenses 106.082 112,113 (6.031) (5.4%) 127,799 (15,686)  (12.3%)
Depreciation and amortization 16,101 15,085 1016 6.7% 16,242 (1.157) (7.1%)
Non-Operating Expenses:
[nterest expense - 87 (87)  (100.0%) 317 (230) (72.6%)
Other expenses 2,711 1,040 1.671 160.7% 435 605 139.1%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 2,711 1,127 1,584 140.6% 752 375 49.9%
Total Expenses $ 124894 § 128325 {3430) (2.7%) $144,793 S (16468)  (11.4%)

11
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Budget versus Actual Performance

The Authority’s total operating budget for FY 2014 was
$122,698 including operating revenue of $117,906,
interest of $14, use of reserves totaling $3,978 and inter-
fund transfers of $800.

The primary source of funding for the budget is the
operating revenue generated by each project and division.
Operating revenue provides 96% of total budget resources
and includes solid waste delivery fees, energy sales,
recycling sales and other revenue. Additional sources of
funding include use of previously established reserve
funds, and inter-fund transfers.

The operating budget provides balanced funding for the
operating expense budgets of each project and division
which total $109,334, their reserve contributions which
total $8,704, their allocated share of the Authority’s
general administrative budget which totals $3,860 and
transfers out totaling $800. Operating expenses represent
83% of the total budget and include solid waste operations,
maintenance and utilities, closure and post closure care of
landfills, legal services and project — specific
administrative and operations services. Reserve
contributions funded in the FY 2014 operating budget
include set asides for the CSWS risk, legal and capital
reserves, the Property Division capital and future
development reserves, and severance reserves.

The Authority’s budget provides for the administrative
oversight of all projects and divisions including salaries
and benefits, and non-personnel services.

The CSWS consumes the largest portion of the total
operating budget ($65,392 or 53% including operating
expenses and reserve contributions). The Southeast
Project represents 24% of the total operating budget and
the Southwest Project is 14%. Other divisions total 8% of
the budget.

The budget structure for the waste to energy facilities
(CSWS and Southeast) reflect the terms and conditions of
applicable municipal service agreements and operating
contracts that generally require fees for municipal waste
disposal to be set at the level necessary to fund each
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facility’s net cost of operation. The net cost of operation represents the total operating budget
less non disposal fee revenue where non disposal fee revenue primarily consists of the sale of

electricity and use of the system by non-members.

The operating budget for the Southwest division funds the Authority’s use of waste disposal
capacity it preserved within the Bridgeport Waste to Energy facility upon expiration of the
project’s original development and operating contracts. The Authority contracts this capacity to
municipal customers and passes through its fee disposal arrangement together with an
administrative fee that supports the Authority’s General Fund.

The operating budget for the Property Division is based on the estimated costs to operate the
facilities assigned to the division. These costs are funded primarily through electric sales
revenue from the Authority’s jet turbine powered electric generating peaking units and facility

lease income.

The operating budget for the Landfill Division is based primarily on long term estimates for the
Authority to fulfill its landfill post closure care obligations established by federal and State laws
and regulations. These costs have been pre-funded through prior project fees and set aside in
reserve accounts and trust funds established for these purposes.

The budget for the Mid Connecticut Project reflects only a share of the Authority’s general
administrative budget. Additional spending from this division for project close out activities
including settlements is approved on an as needed by the Board of Directors.

Table 7 sumumarizes the budget versus actual performance for each project and division. As
indicated, all projects and divisions outperformed operating revenue budgets with the exception
of the Southwest Division due to lower than anticipated waste processing. CSWS saw the
benefit of increased wholesale electric prices due to an abnormally cold winter. The Property
Division exceeded revenue budgets on the basis of reserve payments received through ISO New
England for the peaking units. Mid Connecticut realized additional revenue through disposal of
soils as part of the Hartford Landfill closure project. Total operating expenses were $7,112
(6.5%) under budget in total with only the Southeast Project and Property Division exceeding
initial budget estimates. Including all Net Non-Operating budget items, the Authority achieved a

total budget surplus of $8,824.
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Table 7

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
FY 2014 Budget versus Actual Performance {$000)

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

| Project/ !
Total Division Authority Total | Income Non
] Operating Operating General Operating Before Operating Budget
...ﬁ@jﬂ[f Division Budget | Revenue Expenses Admin. Expenses ‘Depreciation (Net)* Balance
Authority General Fund [s S S 11s 1 |_§ (1 s s e
csws $ 645825 5617035 213615 58306 |5 6,276 | S (6.2761] S
ISoutheast Project $ 28914 |$ 29882 |% 132 (S 30,014 |5 (1,100)] S 1,100 |
Southwest S 17688 |$ 17,111 |5$ 577|$ 17,688 |§ s $
Property Division S 6,722 | § 3,950 | $ 354 | 4304 |5 2,418 | $ (2,418)| S
iLandfill Division $ S 2221 |58 396 | S 2,617 | S (2,617} S 2,617 [ S
Mid Ct. Project S S S 264 | S 264 | 5 (264)| S 264 | S
Other s $ S $ $ $ $
|Total 5 117,906 |$ 109334 |35 35860 |5 113,194 |$ 4,712 | S (4,712)} S -
S . Authority Total Income Non
Operating Operating General Operating Before Operating Budget
Project / Division Actual Revenue Expenses Admin. Budget Depreciation {Net)™ Balance
| Authority General Fund S S S S S S S
CSWS $ 70.075|S5 54986 |5 2,122 |8 57,107 |$ 12,968 ]S (6,537)] S 6,431
Southeast Project S 29,195|S 305115 142 | S 30653 |S {1,458)] S 1,039 | S {419}
Southwest § 13,3898 12907 |S 57218 13,479 | S (90)} 5 - S {50)
Property Division S 9,677 | S 4,449 | S 588 | S 5,037 | S 4,640 | S (4,768)| $ {128)
Landfill Division S 115 | S 464 | S 430 | $ 894 | S (779)| 1477 | S 698
Mid Ct. Project S 1,096 |5  (967) 3 56 | 8 (911} $ 2,007 | S 333 | S 2,340
Other $ {185)[ s (177} $ $ (177) 5 (8)] $ $ (8)
|_To_ta| $ 123,362 |$ 102,173 | $ 3,909 | $ 106,082 [ $ 17,280 | S  (8456)| $ 8,824
I Authority Total Income Non |
| Variance Operating Operating General Operating Before Operating Budget
Over (Under) Budget Revenue Expenses Admin. Budget Depreciation (Net)* | Balance
Authority General Fund S S S (1)) § (1) $ 1($ (1), ¢
CSWS $ 5493 | S (1,184)[ (15} S (1,2199)] S 6,692 |'S (261)i $ 6,431
Southeast Project $ 281 |8 629 | § 103 639 |5 1358)| $ {61) $ (419)
Southwest $  (8299)| S (4,204) $ (5)1$  (4209)] s (90)] $ - |s (30}
Propertv Division $ 2,955 | $ 499 | $ 234 | 3 733 | % 222215 (2350)] % (128)
Landfili Divisiun 13 11513 {1,757 3 3405  {1,7231 5 1533 |3 {ii40) 3 698
Mid Ct. Project S 1,096 | S (9671 & (208)| § {1,175)] & 2,271 8 65 IS 2,340
|other | s (185 $ (177 $ $ 1771 $ (3) $ $ (8)
|Total 's  sase|s  (7,161) 3 49 |8 (7112)] 8 12568 ]S (3,744) S 8.824

Operating revenue budget excludes interest income budgetd for the Authority General
operating (Net) includes interestincome, use of reserve funds and transfers in as additional budget resources, and transfers
out, reserve contributions andlandfill postclosure liability adjustments as additional budgeted expenses
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Capital Assets

The Authority’s investment

in Capita] assets (net of Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

accumnulated depreciation) as  ¢40,000 ($000)
of June 30, 2014 totaled s Tools _ $5.943
$110,475. This represents a ’ 53,226 —22103 —_—

$4,384 (3.8%) reduction from  $100.000 | =1
net capital assets as of June  $80,000
30, 2013 which totaled <6000
$114,859. The Authority's

. . . $40,000
investment in capital assets

includes land, plant, =088

equipment and construction S0

in progress. Fy 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012

@tand mPiant wEquipment & Constructionin Progress

The Authority owns land

used for waste management and related purposes in Bridgeport, Ellington, Hartford, Essex,
Stratford, Shelton, Torrington, Waterbury and Watertown. Its plants primarily include the waste
to energy facility in Hartford, four transfer stations and two recycling facilities. Equipment
includes vehicles and machinery used in the Authority’s waste processing and recycling
operations. Construction in Progress represents ongoing work for plant and equipment
improvements or additions not yet in service. As of June 30, 2014 this primarily consisted of
boiler and bag house improvements in the CSWS trash to energy facility.

The reduction in net capital assets is due to the recognition of depreciation and the sale and
disposal of assets for fiscal year 2014 partially offset by additions to plant, equipment and
construction in progress during fiscal 2014. These changes to capital assets are described more

fully in Note 3.
Long-Term Debt Issuance, Administration and Credit Ratings

As detailed in the table on the following page, as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the
Southeast Project had $54,795 of total outstanding debt that is not carried on the Authority’s
books. This includes the Authority’s Resource Recovery Revenue Refunding Bonds (Covanta
Southeastern Connecticut Company Project — 2010 Series 2010A) supported by a Special Capital
Reserve Fund (SCRF) with the State, and three series of Corporate Credit Revenue Bonds. The
SCRF is a contingent liability of the State available to replenish any debt service reserve fund
draws on bonds that have the SCRF designation. The funds used to replenish a debt service
reserve draw are provided by the State’s General Fund and are deemed appropriated by the
Connecticut legislature. See Note 1A for additional information on the structure of the Southeast

Project.
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STATUS OF OUTSTANDING BONDS ISSUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2014

On
Srndard | X= Origlna) Principal | Auihority's
Moody's | & Poor's | SCRF- Maturity | Principal 'Oumanding- Books
| PROJECT / Sesies Rating Rating | Backed ! Dated Dale (S800; {SC00} 1SV
ISOUTHEAST PROJECT
2010 Series A - Project Refunding > Aa3 | AA X | 120210 | 1L1515| 27,750 11,295
CORPORATE CREDIT REVENUE BONDS
1992 Series A - Corporate Credit Bal MR - |osorez | tvis2a| 300000 30,000
2001 Series A - Covania Southeastem Connecrcut Company-1 Bal NR - 1U1S0L | 111515 6,750 6,750
2001 Series A - Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Cormpany-[1 Bal NR - 111501 | 11.15.15 6.750 6.750
TOTAL PRINCIPAL BONDS OUTSTANDING 54,795
s ! SCRF = Special Capital Reserve Fund ofthe State of Comnecticut,
* The 2010 Seces A Bonds refinded the 1998 Series A Bonds origmally issued i the amownt of $87.650.000 on August 18, 1998,
NR = Not Rated
Economic Factors and Outlook
The most significant economic factors
with the potential to adversely affect the Ct. Day Ahead LMP
Authority are the CSWS business 50,1800
] . $0.1600
model’s reliance on wholesale energy $0.1400
revenue to keep solid waste disposal fees £ 553':0.2?3 —2010
below the levels that trigger customer < soos00 2011
o B oo v
contract termination provisions, the ;g% —2012
limited options available to the Authority 500250 —2013
through other divisions to relieve this $IEIFEEEEERIEY —2014
- 2 gt £55858=5
pressure on tip fees when energy i g LA g
.. a -
revenues are low, and an anticipated iR e

redevelopment of the CSWS in the
context of this model.

The Connecticut Solid Waste System — The business model for CSWS provides that
participating town waste disposal fees (“tip fees”) are to be set at the level necessary to fund the
net cost of operation of the CSWS. The net cost of operation is the total operating budget less
non-disposal fee revenue where non-disposal fee revenue primarily consists of the sale of
electricity generated from the CSWS waste to energy facility and use of the CSWS by non-
members. Consequently, price volatility in the wholesale energy market directly impacts the tip
fees charged to member towns. Some of the Authority’s member town contracts include tip fee
caps avove which the towiis may teriminate the coitract (‘opt out tip fee”). 1n ihe last five fiscal
years, average wholesale electric prices ranged from a high of $0.0703 per Kwh to a low of
$0.0375 per Kwh. Based on the current FY 2015 business model, this is sufficient to reduce tip
fees to a low of $47 per ton (27% below the long term contract opt out), or to increase tip fees to
a high of $80 per ton (24% above the long term contract opt out). To address this matter,
management has established a “Tip Fee Stabilization Fund” which may be drawn upon to
support the CSWS net cost of operation when wholesale energy prices are low, thereby avoiding
the opt out price, and which is to be reimbursed as wholesale energy prices rebound. The Tip
Fee Stabilization Fund was established within the Authority’s Property Division with income
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from the Authority's peaking units as the primary source of funding. The value of the Tip Fee
Stabilization Fund at June 30, 2014 was $2.4 million. Property Division Income will continue to
flow to this fund in FY 2015 to an authorized level of $7.0 million which management considers
sufficient. Management is also preparing bid and contract documents for power purchase
agreements with third parties for the potential direct purchase of a portion of the CSWS electric
generation as a hedge against volatile wholesale energy prices. Additional cost control measures
have been implemented to manage the budget model within the confines of the opt out price.

The Authority’s Property Division — The primary source of revenue to the Property Division is
participation in the wholesale energy markets of the Authority’s peaking units. The majority of
revenue from the peaking units is derived specifically from ISO New England’s Forward
Capacity Reserve and Real Time Reserve markets. [n these reserve markets, wholesale energy
providers are compensated to have electric generation capacity available, not to produce and
export energy to the grid. The Authority's peaking units are infrequently called to produce
energy because they are older and less economically efficient to operate than other power plants
in New England. This inefficiency triggers certain federal and State air quality and emissions
regulations requiring issuance of a ~“Trading Order” that permits the peaking units to run for a
limited number of hours subject to the Authority’s acquisition of “Discrete Emission Reduction
Credits” (DERCs). While the Authority’s existing Trading Order extends through May 31, 2017,
the Capacity Supply Obligations it has incurred to ISO New England will soon extend through
May 31, 2019. To address this matter, management has commenced a study to determine the
feasibility of retrofitting the peaking units to meet air quality standards and eliminate the need
for the Trading Order. Management has also begun assembling the data, analysis and reports
necessary to “delist” the peaking units from the pool of electric generating resources available to
ISO New England and avoid further extending the Authority’s Capacity Supply Obligations if
the retrofit is not feasible. Additional efforts are being undertaken to assess the feasibility of
extending the Trading Order as a stop gap measure. The Authority may also enter ISO New
England’s Reconfiguration Auctions where Capacity Supply Obligations are transferred among
wholesale energy producers, or may enter direct agreements to transfer such obligation(s) as
necessary. These efforts will determine the sustainability of electric generating revenue to the
Authority's Property Division and therefore its ability to sustain the Tip Fee Stabilization Fund
during extended periods of depressed wholesale energy prices.

The Authority’s Landfill Division — In FY 2014, under State mandate, the Authority
transferred its landfill post closure care obligations with respect to five landfills to the State’s
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) and $31 million (approximately
92%) of its landfill post closure care reserves to the State. The transfer of these obligations and
reserves did not otherwise affect the Authority’s ownership and/or leasehold interest in the
landfills or reduce the Authority's landfill liability. See Notes 4 and 11 for additional
information concerning these transfers. To address this matter, management has secured a
pollution legal liability insurance policy including coverage for the five landfills for a term of
thirty-eight months commencing August 1, 2014. The policy provides coverage of $40 million
per occurrence and $40 million aggregate over the policy term with a $250,000 deductible. The
Authority estimates that its retained landfill post closure reserves are adequate to fund such
coverage for at least the next ten years at existing premiums. When these reserves arc expended,
payment obligations for insurance and related expenses including premiums, deductibles and
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claims outside of policy coverage will need to transfer from the Landfill Division to the CSWS
or Property Division. The timing of such transfer is dependent on the timely closure of the
Hartford landfill and assumption of those obligations by DEEP, the future cost of insurance
coverage and any required payment of deductibles or claims.

Redeveloping CSWS

In FY 2014, the State passed Public Act 14-94 (the “Act”) forming the Authority and designating
it as successor to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (CRRA). One of the core
objectives of the Act is to set a process in motion, with specific roles and deadlines for the
Authority, DEEP and the private sector that will bring about the redevelopment of the CSWS.
The major milestones of this initiative are summarized below.

» By January 1, 2016 DEEP, in consultation with the Authority, is to issue a Request for
Proposals to redevelop the CSWS.

+ By Janvary 1, 2017 not more than three short-listed respondents selected by DEEP are to
conduct and complete any required feasibility studies with the Authority’s cooperation.
DEEP is required to hold a public hearing concerning the feasibility studies but the
deadline is not specified in the legislation.

s By lJuly 1, 2017 the short-listed respondents are to submit final proposals to DEEP.

* By September 15, 2017 DEEP is to submit a report on the nature and status of CSWS
redevelopment proposals to the State legislature.

» By October 30, 2017 the State legislature may hold a public hearing concerning DEEP s
status report.

» By December 31, 2017 DEEP may select one final proposal and direct the Authority to
enter into an agreement with the applicable respondent for the redevelopment of the

CSWS.

While the nature, cost and funding mechanisms for this redevelopment are not yet determined,
ihe undedying legistation did include proposal selection criteria sensitive to these matters. The
Act requires DEEP to consider the level of investment proposed and whether the proposal is in
the best interest of the municipalities under contract with the Authority, including maintenance
or reduction of tip fees. The Act further provides that the selection of a final proposal by DEEP,
in consultation with the Authority, is not to be construed as a legislative mandate that otherwise
would increase the “opt out tip fee™ established in certain municipal contracts.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Authority’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Chief
Financial Officer, 100 Constitution Plaza - 6" Floor, Hartford, CT 06103.
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Restricted Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Restricted Investments

Capital Assels:
Depreciable, net
Nondepreciable

Development costs, net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

EXHIBITI

Page 1 of 2
2014 2013
Restated
58,827 87,559
14,058 17,073
6,069 6,544
2,328 355
81,282 111,531
2,694 6,705
2,694 6,705
83,976 118,236
8,184
79,068 84,517
31,407 30,342
784 1,177
111,259 124,220
195,235 242,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements




MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT I
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 2 of 2
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)

2014 2013
B Restated
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable fromn unrestricted assets:
Closure and post-closure care of landfills 43 14214
Accounts payable 4.740 4311
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 8,498 11,430
Total payable from unrestricted assets - 13,281 29,935
Payable from restricted asscts:
Accounts payable - 33
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,096 2,837
Total payable trom restricted assets 4,096 2,870
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 17,377 32825
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Payable from unrestricted assets:
Post-closure care of landfills - 27,695
Other tiabilities 3,500 3.500
Total payable from unrestricted assets 3,500 31,195
Payable from restricted assets:
Post-closure care of landfills 7,367
Other liabilities - 716
Total payable from restricted assets 3,083
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 3,500 39.278
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20.877 72,103
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESQURCES
Deferred Inflows 2,592 2,105
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES s 23,469 74,208
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt . 110,476 114,859
Restricted for:
Covanta Wallingford escrow 500 500
Other restricted net pasition 48 225
City of Hartford Recycling education fund 143
Energy generating facility 1.646
Montville landfill post-closure 1.026
DEEP trust - landfills 817
Shelton landfill (uture use - 701
Total Restricted 548 5,058
Unrestricted 60,742 48,331
TOTAL NET POSITION _ 171,766 168,248
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET $ 195,235 242,456

POSITION

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)

EXHIBIT 1T

2014 2013
Restated

Operating Revenues

Service charges:

Members $ 45,588 $ 49,145
Others 16,513 18,512

Energy sales 56,451 42,261

Other operating revenues 4,810 9,948
Total Operating Revenues 123,362 119,866
Operating Expenses

Solid waste operations 97,583 99,194

Maintenance and utilities 1,313 1,024

Closure and post-closure care of landfills (3,392) 1,862

Legal services - external 3,012 1,209

Administrative and Operational services 6,191 7,525

Distribution to SCRRRA 1,375 -

Distribution to member towns - 810

Distribution to SWEROC - 489
Total Operating Expenses 106,082 112.113
Operating Income (Loss) before depreciation and
amortization 17,280 7,753

Depreciation and amortization 16,101 15,085
Operating Income (Loss) 1,179 (7,332)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenscs)

Investment income 109 139

Gain on transfer of post closure liabilities 4,751 -

Other income (expenses), net (2,521) (973)

Interest expense - (87)
Non-Operating Expenses, Net 2,339 (921)
Change in Net Position 3,518 (8,253)
Total Net Position, beginning of period 168,248 176,501
Total Net Position, end of period $ 171,766 $ 168,248

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT I1I
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)

04 2013
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Payments received from providing services $ 126,561 $ 117,354
Payments to suppliers (103,074) (104,018)
Payments to employees (4,106) (2,841)
Distribution to member towns - (810)
Distribution to SWEROC - (489)
Distribution to SCRRRA 1,375) -
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 18,006 9,196
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities
Procceds from sales of equipment 595 49
Payments for landfill closure and post-closure care liabilities (14,200) (1,786)
Cash transfer to State for post-closure liabilities (31,000) -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (11,786) (8,287)
Interest paid on long-term debt - (113)
Principal paid on long-term debt - (4,135)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (56,391) (14,272)
Cash Flows Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Other interest and fees (2,651) (11)
Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities (2,651) (11)
Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Proceeds from Investments 8,184 -
Interest on investments 109 145
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 8,293 145
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (32,743) (4,942)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 94,264 99,206
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3 61,521 $ 94,264

Reconciliation of Operating income (loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)

by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) 5 1,179 § (10,248)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation of capital assets 15,709 14,685
Amortization of development and bond issuancc costs 392 400
Provision for closure and post-closure care of landfills - 1,862
Other income (expenses) . 18
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of transfers:
(Increasc) decreasc in:
Accounts receivable, net 3,014 (3,064)
Inventory 475 (174)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,973) 4,095
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (790) 1,622
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5 18,006 $ 9,196

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Services
The Materials Innovation and Recycling

Authority (the ~Authority™) was created by the
State of Connecticut (the “State™) under Public

Act 14-94 (the “Act”). The Authority
constitutes a successor authority to the
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

(CRRA) which was created in 1973 under
Chapter 446e of the State Statutes. The
Authority is a public instrumentality and
political subdivision of the State and is included
as a component unit in the State’s
Comprehensive Anaual Financial Report.

The Authority became CRRA’s successor
effective June 6, 2014 when it assumed control
over all of CRRA's assets, rights, duties and
obligations and continued CRRA's ongoing
business. The Act and related statutes outlined
below specified the transfer of responsibilities
from CRRA to the Authority in a manner that
assured continuity.

o The Authority’s designation as CRRA’s
successor did not represent a grant of new
authority by the State. The Authority
replaced CRRA and CRRA no longer exists;

» Any effective orders or regulations of
CRRA rcmain  effective  under the
govemance of the Authority;

»  To the extent that CRRA was a party to any
action or proceeding (civil or criminal), the
Authority was substituted for CRRA in that
action or proceeding;

* Any contract, right of action or matter
undertaken or commenced by CRRA is now
being undertaken and completed by the
Authority;

24

» The officers and employees of CRRA have
been transferred to the Authority; and

»  All property of CRRA has been delivered to
the Authority.

Considering the nature and scope of the
Authority’s designation as CRRA’s successor,
the Authority’s financial statements reflect all
operating and non-operating revenues and
expenses for the period ending June 30, 2014,
and all assets, liabilities and the net position of
the Authority as of June 30, 2014, including all
financial activities of CRRA during this period.

The Authority is authorized to have a board
consisting of eleven dircctors and eight ad-hoc
members. The Governor appoints three directors
and all eight ad-hoc members. The remaining
eight directors are appointed by various state
legislative leaders. All appointments require the
advice and consent of both houses of the
General Assembly. The Act made no changes to
the composition of, or appointments to, the
Authority’s current Board of Directors.

The State Treasurer continues to approve the
issuance of all Authority bonds and notes. The
State is contingently liable to restore
deficiencies in debt service rescrves established
for certain Authority bonds. The Authority has
no taxing power.

Under thc Act, the Authority’s purpose
continues to be the planning, design,
construction, financing, management,

ownership, operation and maintenance of solid
waste disposal, volume reduction, recycling,
intermediale processing, resource recovery and
related support facilities necessary to carry out
the State’s Solid Waste Management Plan. The
Authority continues to provide solid waste
management services to municipalities, regions
and persons within the state by receiving solid
wastes at Authority facilities, recovering



resources from such solid wastes, and
generating revenues from such services
sufficient for the Authority to operate on a self-
sustatning basis.

The Act established a new consultative
partnership between the Authority and the
State's Department  of  Energy  and
Environmental Protection (DLEP) specifically
for redevelopment of the Authority’s
Connecticut  Solid Waste System (CSWS)

described below, and generally for the
development of new waste management
industrics, technologies and  cormmercial

enterprises on property owned by the Authority.
The Act charged DEEP with revising the State’s
solid waste management plan and undertaking
these consultative efforts consistent with the
revised  plan, The Act also transferred
responsibility for statewide recycling education
to a newly created “Recycle CT Foundation™.
The Authority continues to provide educational
facilities and services to its customers as of June
30, 2014.

CRRA’s original core mission was to develop a
network of resource recovery and related
facilities within the State to move the State
away from the process of landfilling its
municipal solid waste. Facilities were
constructed in Hartford, Preston, Bridgeport and
Wallingtord, Connecticut, which have
historically been known as the Mid Connecticut,
Southeast, Bridgeport and Wallingford projects
respectively. CRRA sccured financing, facility
developer, operator and customer contracts, and
administered these projects throughout their
various stages over the last four decades. While
the initial underlying contracts for the Southeast

affant thao Far WA A
10

Projcet remain in effect, those Gy girdiis
Connecticut, Bridgeport and Wallingford have
expired resulting in a distribution and/or
reformation of project assets which formed the
foundation for CRRA’'s core project / division
and financial structure at the time of assumption
by the Authority. The Authority continues to
recognize CRRA's project / division and

financial structure outlined below.
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Mid Connecticut Project - CRRA retained title
to the resource recovery facility in Hartford
(South Meadows), all support facilities and land
when the initial underlying project contracts
expired. No property transterred to the facility
operator, CRRA assigned these assets to its
Property Division and put them into service in
the form of the Connecticut Solid Waste System
(CSWS). Assets in service to the CSWS include
the resource recovery facility, four transfer
stations and a major recycling facility. The
CSWS presently provides solid waste disposal
services to 51 municipalities in the State and is
the primary operating division of the Authority.
All operating rtevenues and expenses of the
CSWS, other than depreciation and amortization
of assets, are assigned to the CSWS division.
Mid Conmecticut Project assets not in service to
the CSWS include the Education and Trash
Museum and certain jet turbine powered electric
generating peaking units.  All revenues and
expenses associated with the assets not In
service to CSWS are assigned to the Property
Division. The Mid Connecticut Project remains
active administratively for project close out
activity including closure of the Hartford
landfill and funds distribution.

Southeast Project

The initial underlying structure of this project
remains in place. CRRA issued its Resource
Recovery Revenue Bonds, and subsequently
Refunding Bonds, (the “Bonds™), to finance
construction of this resource- recovery facility
located in Preston and the supporting Special
Capital Reserve Fund held by the State
Treasurer. CRRA owned the facility and leased
it to a private operator. The private operator
runs the facility pursuant to a Service
Agreement with CRRA, under which the CRRA
is obligated to meet certain solid waste delivery
requirements. To meet these requirements, the
Southeastern Connecticut Regional Resource
Recovery Authority (SCRRRA) was established
and SCRRRA entered into agreements with its
twelve member municipalities requiring them to
deliver waste to SCRRRA for disposal at the
facility. Under a Bridge and Management
Agreement between CRRA and SCRRRA, the
Authority causes the facility to be operated and



maintained and SCRRRA causes its members to
deliver waste, Based on this structure, CRRA's
Balance Sheet has not included the Capital
Assets comprising the facility as they will revert
to operator ownership upon expiration of the
underlying documents. Likewise, the Balance
Sheet does not reflect the Current or Long Term
Liabilities associated with these Capital Assets
(debt service on the Bonds) which is secured
solely by the pledge of revenue derived from the
facility. CRRA’s responsibility, among other
things, has been to manage the flow of funds
under the Bond Indenture. Accordingly, the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position includes revenues and funds
distributed by the Authority pursuant to the
Indenture. The Authority has assumed CRRA’s
interests and obligations under the Bonds, lease,
Service Agreement, Bridge and Management
Agreement and reports this activity consistent
with the structure noted above.

Bridgeport Project — CRRA retained title to
the land and a major recycling facility located in
Stratford upon expiration of initial project
underlying contracts. It transferred title to the
resource recovery facility to the operator, but
retained rights to a portion of the facility's
waste processing capacity through June 30,
2014. CRRA leased the land to the operator and
used its retained facility capacity to serve the
waste processing needs of twelve towns in the
Southwest area of the State. The processing of
waste through this retained facility capacity is
reflected in CRRA's *“Southwest Division”
which was formed for this purpose but ceased
operations on June 30, 2014. Revenue from the
facility lease was assigned to the Property
Division. The Authority has assumed CRRA’s
interests and obligations in these assets and
reports this activity consistent with the structure
noted above.

Wallingford Project — Title to the resource
recovery facility and underlying land was
transferred to the operator. While no fixed
assets were retained by CRRA, the Authority
has assumed CRRA's interests and obligations
with respect to certain ongoing project close out
and asset transfer activities.
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Property Division — All Capital Assets retained
by CRRA wupon expiration of the Mid
Connecticut and Bridgeport projects other than
those associated with landfills are assigned to
this division. The division derives net income
primarily from the lease of property and sale of
jet turbine electric generating capacity in
various ISO New England energy markets.
The Authority has assumed CRRA's interests
and obligations in the Property Division and
reports this activity consistent with the structure
noted above.

Landfill Division — As of June 6, 2014 the
Authority assumed CRRA’s ownership interests
in three closed landfills in the State, and certain
adjoining properties, assigned to the Landfill
Division. Certain  plant and equipment
installations associated with these landfills, and
the leased Hartford landfill, are also assigned to
this division. The Authority has also assumed
CRRA's interests and obligations pursuant to
State statute and agreement with DEEP
concerning the transfer of CRRA'’s landfill post
closure care obligations to DEEP and the
transfer of funds reserved for post close care
activities to the State. See Note 4 for additional
information.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting,
and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Authority have
been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("GAAP™) as applied to
government  entities.  The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB") is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

The Authority is considered to be an Enterprise
Fund. The Authority's activities are accounted
for using a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net
position, revenues, and expenses.

Enterprise funds are established to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a



manner similar to private business enterprises,
where the intent is that the costs of providing
goods or services on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

The Authority’s financial statements are
prepared using an economic  Tesources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Interest on revenue bonds, used to
finance the construction of certain asset, is
capitalized during the construction period, net of
interest earned on the investment of unexpended
bond proceeds.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues
and expenses from non-operating items.
Operaling revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services in connection
with the disposal of solid waste. The principal
operating revenues of the Authority are charges
to customers for user services and sales of
electricity. Operating expenses include the cost
of solid waste operations, maintenance and
utilities, closure and post-closure care of
landfills, administrative expenses, distribution
to member towns and/or other, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

C. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liahilities at
the date of the balancc sheets and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting  period.  Such  estimates  are
subsequently revised as deemed necessary when
additional information becomes available.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

All unrestricted and restricted highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or
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less when purchased are considered to be cash
equivalents.

E. Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable are shown net of an
allowance for the estimated portion that is not
expected to be collected. The Authority
performs ongoing credit evaluations and
generally requires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral from wnon-municipalities. The
Authority has established an allowance for the
estimated portion that is not expected to be
collected of $254,000 at June 30, 2014 and
$632,000 at June 30, 2013.

F. Inventory

The Authority’s spare parts inventory is stated
at the lower of cost or market using the
weighted-average cost method. The Authority’s
fuel inventory is stated at the lower of cost or
market using the FIFO method. Inventories at
June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as

follows:
Fiscal Year
Inventories 2014 2013
{000) (3000)
Spare Parts h) 4,687 3 5.323
Fucl 1.382 1,221
Total 3 6,065 $ 6,544

G. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Gains or
losses on sales of investments are determined
using the specific identification method.

Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in
the year the interest is carmned, unless capitalized
as an offset to capitalized interest expense on
assets acquired with tax-exempt debt.

H. Restricted Positions

Under provisions of various bond indentures
and certain other agreements, restricted assets
are used for debt service, special capital reserve



funds and other debt service reserve funds,
development, construction and operating costs.

I. Development Costs

Costs incurred during the development stage of
an Authority project, including, but not limited
to, initial planning and permitting. When the
project begins commercial operation, the
development costs are amortized using the
straight-line method over the estimated life of

the project.

Development costs for fiscal 2014 and 2013 are
presented in the following table:

Southeast
Development Costs Fiscal Year
2014 2013
(3000) (S000)
Development Costs S 10006 10.006
Less accummulated
amortization 9222 8.329
Total development
costs, net 3 784 $ L177
A summary of fulure amortization for
development is as follows:
Fiscal year ending Southeast
June 30, ($000)
2015 392
2016 392
Total 3 784

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets with a useful lifc in excess of one
year are capitalized at historical cost.
Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets is
charged as an cxpensc against operations.
Depreciation has been provided over the
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of landfills
are based on the estimated years of available
disposal capacity. The estimated useful lives of
other capital assets are as follows:
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Capital Assets Years
Resources Recovery Buildings 30
Other Buildings 20
Resources Recovery Equipment 30
Gas and Steam Turbines 10-20
Recycling Equipment 10
Rolling Stock and Automobiles 5
Office and Other Equipment 3-5
Roadways 20

The Authority’s capitalization threshold for
property, plant, and equipment and for office
furniture and equipment is $5,000 and $1,000,
respectively. Improvements, renewals, and
significant repairs that extend the useful life of a
capital asset are capitalized; other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
When capital assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the related asset and accumulated
depreciation is written off and any related gains
or losses are recorded.

The Authority reviews its long-lived assets used
in operations for impairment when there is an
gvent or change in circumstances that indicates
impairment in value. The Authority records
impairment losses and reduces the carrying
value of properties when indicators of
impairment are present and the expected
undiscounted cash flows related to those
properties are less than their carrying amounts.
In cases where the Authority does not expect to
recover its carrying costs on properties held for
use, the Authority reduces its carrying cost to
fair value, and for properties held for sale, the
Authority reduces its carrying value to the fair
value less costs to sell. During the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, no impairment
losses were recognized. Management does not
believe that the value of its properties is
impaired as of June 30, 2014.



K. Compensated Absences
The Authority’s liability for vested accumulated

unpaid vacation and personal amounts is
included in accrued expenses and other current
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liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.
Compensated absences for fiscal 2013 and 2014
are presented in the following table:

N . SRR
Balands at Balanes
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L. Net Position

The Authority’s net position is stated in the
three components including invested in capital
assets, testricted net position and unrestricted
net position.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of bonds that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restrictions of net position are limited to
outside third party restrictions and represent the
net position that has been legally identified for
specific purposes. Restricted net position totaled
$548,000 and $5.0 million as of June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, thc Authority has
no net position that is restricted by enabling
legislation.
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Unrestricted net position may be divided into
designated  and  undesignated  portions.
Designated net position represent the
Authority’s self-imposed limitations on the use
of otherwise unrestricted net position.
Unrestricted net position has been designated by
the Board of Directors of the Authority for
various purposes. Such designations totaled
$25.7 million and $22.3 million as of June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Unrestricted net
position at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are
summarized as follows:



Unrestricted Net Positon 2004 2013
{SOtH)) {S000)
Undesignated S 33007 S 26.019
Designated
Capital Expenditures 3130
Debt senice stabilizaton 173
Caron litigation expense 394 438
Future loss continzencies 6.603 8647
Genenal 4334
Improyerenls 3343
Landll dev 2lopment 296 290
Legul 208
Litigation r2sene 790 ENER]
Non-G:ASB =18 post<losure 1.783 +115
Post-projeci clasure 1+ 179
Project-closure 1635 433
Recveling 150 139
Sevennces 874
Tip fee stablization 2408
Transiion costs 1.750
23733 22312
l'oral Unrestricted et Position S 60742 S 48331

M. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective June 1, 2013, the Authority adopted
the provisions of Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65,
ltems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities (GASB 65). As a result of adopting
GASB 65, the Authority now presents resources
that do not meet the availability criterion as
deferred inflows of resources.

Effective June 1, 2013, the Authority adopted
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 66,
Technical Corrections (GASB No. 66). This
statement establishes clarifications on two
recently issued statements, statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, and statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting  Guidance  Contained in  Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. This statement resolves
conflicting guidance created as a result of the
issuance of these two statements,
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The Authority fully adopted GASB statements
No.65 and 66 as of July 1,2013 and there was no
significant impact to the financial statements.

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INYESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the
following as of June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2014 2013
(5000) (S000)
Unrestricted:
Cash deposits S 8935 S 3342
Cash equivalents:
STIF * 49892 84.217
58.827 87,559
Restricted — current:
Cash deposits 1,788 630
Cash equivalents:
STIF * 584 6.075
Money Markel
Funds 322
2.694 6.703
Restricted — non-current:
Cash equivalents:
U.S. Treasuries 8.184
8,184
Total S 61521 S102.448

7 SUIF = Short-Tenn (nvestment Fund of the State of Connecticul

A, Cash Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in thc cvent
of a bank failure, the Authority will not be able
to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority's
investment policy does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, approximately
$9.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively, of
the Authority’s bank balance of cash deposits
were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:



Custodial Credit Risks 2014 2013
(5000) {S000)

Uninsured and Uncollateralized S 8495 S1.388

Uninsured but collareralized

with securities held by the

pledging banlc’s trust

department or agent but not in

the Authority’s name 1.427 3350

Total $ 9.922 §2238

All of the Authority’s deposits were in qualified
public iastitutions as defined by State statute.
Under this statute, any bank holding public
deposits must at all times maintain, segregated
from other assets, eligible collateral in an
amount equal to a certain percentage of its
public deposits. The applicable percentage is
determined based on the bank’s risk-based
capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is
determined bascd on either the public deposits
reported on the most recent quarterly call report,
or the average of the public deposits reported on
the four most recent quarterly call reports,
whichever is greater. The collateral is kept in
the custody of the trust department of cither the
pledging bank or another bank in the name of
the piedging bank.

Investments in the Short-Term Investment Fund
(“STIF™), U.S. Treasuries, and Money Market
Funds as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are
included in cash and cash equivalents in the
accompanying balance sheet. For purposes of
disclosure under GASB Statement No. 40, such
amounts are considered investments and are
included in the investment disclosures that

follow,
B. Investments

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2014, the Authority’s
investments consisted of the following debt
securities:

31

Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

[mestment Maturities

tn Y ears)
Investiment Far Less More
Type Value than lto 6to  than
(S i > m 1
STIF $ 50476 350476 S - S - S

530476 S 50476 S -3

wy
}

Total

As of June 30, 2013, the Authority’s
investments consisted of the following debt
securities:

[nvesunent Maturities

(In Yearsl
[nvestment Faur Less Vore
Type Value than lto 6to than
(S600) . 1 5 10 10
STIF $90292 59292 § - S - §

U.S. Treasuries 3184 8.184

Total S 98476 S 9476 S - S - § -

STIF is an investment pool of short-term money
market instruments that may include adjustable-
rate federal agency and foreign govemment
securities whose interest rates vary directly with
short-term money market indices and arc
generally reset daily, monthly, quarterly, and
semi-annually. The adjustable-rate securities
have similar exposures to credit and legal risks
as fixed-rate securities from the same issuers.
The fair value of the position in the pool is the
same as the value of the pool shares. As of June
30, 2014 and 2013, STIF had a weighted
average maturity of 40 days and 45 days;
respectively. The U.S. Treasury Securitics are
U.S. Treasury Bills that had 90-day maturities as
of June 30, 2013. The Monecy Market Funds

invest exclusively in shortterm U.S, Treasury
obligations and repurchase agreements secured
by U.S. Treasury obligations.  This fund
complies with Securities and Exchange
Commission regulations regarding money
market fund maturities, which requires that the
weighted average maturity be 90 days or less.
As of June 30, 2014, the weighted average

maturity of this fund was 40 days.

The Authority’s investment policy does not
limit investment maturities as a means of



managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates. The
Authority is limited to investment maturities as
required by specific bond resolutions or as
needed for immediate use or disbursement.
Those funds not included in the foregoing may
be invested in longer-term securities as
authorized in the Authority’s investment policy.
The primary objectives of the Authority’s
investment policy are the preservation of
principal and the maintenance of liquidity.

Credit Risk

The Authority’s investment policy delineates the
investment of funds in securities as authorized
and defined within the bond resolutions
governing the Southeast Projects for those funds
established under the bond resolution and held
in trust by the Authority’s trustee. For all other
funds, Comnnecticut state statutes permit the
Authority to invest in obligations of the United
States, including its instrumentalities and
agencies; in obligations of any state or of any
political subdivision, authority or agency
thereof, provided such obligations are rated
within onc¢ of the top two rating categories of
any recognized rating service; or in obligations
of the State of Connecticut or of any political
subdivision thereof, provided such obligations
are rated within one of the top three rating
categories of any recognized rating service.

As of June 30, 2014, the Authority’s
investments, other than U.S. Treasuries, were
rated as follows:

Far Moody's
Sccunty Value Standard  Investor Fitch
(S000) & Poor's  Service  Ratings
Not Not
STIF S 50476  AAAm Rated Rated
Money Market Funds § 322 AAAmM  Aaa-ml’ AAAmmt
As of June 30, 2013, the Authority’s

investments, other than U.S. Treasuries, were
rated as follows:
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Far Moody's
Securtty Value  Standard  Investor Fitch
(50001 & Poor's  Service  Ratings
Not Not
STIF $90292  AAAm Rated Rated

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Authority will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Authority’s investment policy does
not include provisions for custodial credit risk,
as the Authority does not invest in securities that
are held by counterparties. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 40, none of the
Authority’s investments require custodial credit
risk disclosures. The STIF is not subject to
regulatory oversight nor is it registered with the
Securitics and Exchange Commission as an
investment company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority’s investment policy places no
limit on the amount of investment in any one
issuer, but does require diversity of the
investment portfolio if investments are made in
non-U.S. government or U.S. agency securities
to eliminate the rtisk of loss of over-
concentration of assets in a specific class of
security, a specific maturity and/or a specific
issuer. The asset allocation of the investment
portfolio should, however, be flexible enough to
assure adequate liquidity for Authority nceds.
As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, approximately
100% and 91.7%, respectively, of the
Authority’s investments are in the STIF, which
1s rated in the highest rating category by
Standard & Poor’s and provides daily liquidity,
thereby satisfying the primary objectives of the
Authority’s investment policy.
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Balance at Salesand Balaoee at Sales and Dalance at
June 30,2017 Additions Transfers Disposals ~ Juae 30,2013 Additions Transfers Dispnsals ~ June 30,2004
(3008) {3000) {3000) (3000) (30067 {5000) (5000} 15000) (500)
Depreciatle assets: ;
Plant oo KT T XE A A Bt I S PAR - SR R R R L F R R
Faadpntent 27y32) IR 3003 s 23T 137 0330 thosh 2179
lotal al cost IR ERAN 13T 1330 130307 137 13 12097 43432

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Flant 3B j 323 i3 138 1137 496 (0 160 1323 1162631
Eqgagment i180 397 1 44¢ T 1193 294 MMy 3 S 93 119,623
lotal acomaulited depeeeiation 1333 430 (14 09: 123 1334 34510 113,700 . 2243 {339.756)

Total depreciable assets, net 50830 S (1L S nam s (LB 5 WA 3 (153 3 AT 3 @3y S 79,063

Nondeprsciable assets;

Land B Co \ - R TR <y < S MR
LORSIRLCLION-10-Drogrss M3 1263 1204 : 2161 11549 110,533 - 12%
Total nondepresiable assers § WY §F 833§ (pn 3 -5 XWMHIOOS NG5 (10383 S - 5 31407

Tota) depreciable ond
nendepreciable asselg S 119,383

[

3030y S ()3 (10 5 114859 30y 8 B) S5 #% 5  100475

[y
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Interest is capitalized on assets acquired with
debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized is
calculated by offsetting interest expense
incurred from the date of borrowing until
completion of the projects with interest earned
on invested debt proceeds over the same period.
During fiscal years 2014 and 2013, there was no
capitalized interest as there was no new external
borrowing.

4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE
CARE OF LANDFILLS

Federal, State and local regulations require the
Authority to place final cover on its landfills
when it stops accepting waste (including ash)
and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions for periods that may
extend to thirty years after closurs.

GASB Statement No. 18 "Accounting for
Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Post-Closure Care Costs," applies to closure and
post-closure care costs that are paid near or after
the date a landfill stops accepting waste. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, the
Authority estimates its liability for these closure
and post-closure care costs and records any
increases or decreases to the liability as an
operating expense. For landfills presently open,
such estimate is based on landfill capacity used
as of the balance sheet date. The liability for
these costs is reduced when the costs are
actually paid, which is generally after the
landfill is closed. Actual costs may be higher
due to inflation or changes in permitted
capacity, technology or regulation. At June 30,
2013, all five of the landfills had no capacity
available since 100% of their capacity had been
used.

The Connecticut Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection (“DEEP”) requires
that certain financial assurance mechanisms be
maintained by the Authority to ensure payment

of closure and post-closure costs related to
certain landfills. Additionally, DEEP requires
that the Authority include closure costs for the
Hartford Landfill in its applicable fiscal year

budget.
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The Authority has placed funds in reserve
accounts for the Hartford, Ellington, Waterbury,
and Wallingford Landfills for financial
assurance purposes. These reserve accounts are
reflected as cash and equivalents in the
accompanying balance sheet as of June 30,
2013.

In addition, the Authority established Post-
Closure Trust Funds as financial assurance
mechanisms for the Shelton Landfill and the
Wallingford Landfill. Thesc trust funds are
reflected as restricted investments in the
accompanying balance sheet as of June 30,
2013,

During FY 2014, pursuant to applicable State
statute as described further under Note 11, the
Authority transferred its post closure care
obligations for all of its landfills to DEEP and
concurrently transferred $31 million of the
landfill reserve accounts and trust funds
described above to the State’s General Fund.
The Authority's closure obligation for the
Hartford landfill was not transferred.
Accordingly, the accompanying balance sheet as
of June 30, 2014 no longer recognizes liabilities
associated with the post closure care of the
Authority's landfills but continues to recognize
the Hartford Landfill closure obligation. The
nature and status of these statutes and their
implementation are described fully under Note
11. Their effect on Authority’s FY 2014
Financial Statements are as follows:

' $7.5 million in funds held in trust by US
Bank as financial assurance mechanisms for the
Shelton Landfill and the Wallingford Landfill,
and reflected as restricted investments as of
June 30, 2013, have been liquidated and used by
the Authority to satisfy its transfer obligation to
the State's General Fund,

. $23.5 million in funds held in reserve
accounts for the Hartford, Eilington, Waterbury,
and Wallingford Landfills, and reflected as cash
and equivalents as of June 30, 2013, have been
liquidated and used by the Authority to satisfy
its transfer obligation to the State;



J Landfill trust funds and reserve
accounts not used to satisfy the Authority’s
transfer obligation to the State are no longer
restricted and are being used to advance fund
ongoing landfill work that is being reimbursed
by DEEP during a transition period, to fund
maintenance activity at the Hartford landfill
pending completion of the Closure Certification
Report and assumption of post closure
obligations by DEEP, and to pay necessary
ongoing insurance coverage;

. $35.8 million in long term liabilities of
the Authority for the post closure care of its
landfills as of the effective date of transfer to
DEEP have been removed from the Authority's
Financial Statements;

d $4.3 million in non-operating revenue
has been recognized in the Authority’s Landfill
Division. This non-operating revenue reflects
the difference between funds transferred by the
Authority and the GASB 18 liabilitics assumed
by the State;

. An inter-fund loan from the Authority’s
Hartford Landfill Post Closure Reserve to the
Authority’s Connecticut Solid Waste System
(CSWS), representing start up working capital
for CSWS, has been written off the Authority’s
Financial Statements as there is no ongoing need
for this post closure reserve. This $7.9 million
transaction is now reflected as a contribution

Liability
at
June 30.
20127 Expense
(S000 Suouy

Paid
{S000)

Landfil

Liability
at
June 30.
2013
(S000)
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from the Landfill Division to CSWS rather than
a CSWS liability due to other funds as presented
in the Authority’s Financial Statements as of
June 30, 2013.

There were no capital assets transferred

pursuant to these statutes.

The closure and post-closure care liabilities
including the amounts paid and accrued for
fiscal 2013 and 2014 for the landfills, are
presented in the following table:
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During the year ended June 30, 2014, the
Authority revised its estimates for closure
expenses to be incurred at the Hartford landfill.
Previously accrued closure costs were reduced
by approximately $3.4 million.

5. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Energy sales to ISO New England through our
lead market participant Nextera Energy Power
Marketing and Northeast Utilities (totaled 29%
and 16.80%; respectively, of the Authority’s
operating revenues for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014. Energy sales to Northeast
Utilities and Constellation totaled 16.31% and
12.19%; rtespectively, of the Authority’s
operating revenues for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.

Service charge revenues from All Waste, Inc.
totaled 6.28% and 7.00% of the Authority's
operating revenues for fiscal years ended June
30, 2014 and 2013; respectively.

6. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan. This defined
contribution retirement plan covers all eligible
employees.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan, effective July 1, 2000,
Authority contributions are five percent of
payroll plus a dollar for dollar match of
employees’ contributions up to five percent of
employee wages. Authority contributions for the
years cnded June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted
to  $392,000 and $410,000, respectively.
Employees contributed $390,000 to the plan in
fiscal year 2014 and $406,000 in fiscal year
2013. A separate report is not available to non-
participants.

In addition, the Authority is a participating
employer in the State of Connecticut’s defined
contribution  457(b) Plan, which allows
Authority employees to participate in the State
of Connecticut’s deferred compensation plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457, All  amounts of
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compensation deferred under the 457(b) plan,
all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those
amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for
the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and
their beneficiaries. The Authority holds no
fiduciary responsibility for the plan; rather,
fiduciary responsibility rests with the State
Comptroller’s office.

The Authority has no post-employment benefit
plans as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of
loss. The Authority endeavors to purchase
commercial insurance for all insurable risks of
loss that can be done so at reasonable expense.
Settled claims have mnot exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the past three (3)
fiscal years. The overall limit applies on a
blanket basis, per occurrence, for property
damage to all scheduled locations and
provides coverage for business interruption
and extra expense for the South Meadows
facilities. The South Meadows waste-to-energy
facility is the Authority’s highest valued single
facility.

The Authority is a member of the Connecticut
Interlocal  Risk  Management  Agency's
("CIRMA”) Workers’ Compensation Pool, a
risk sharing pool, which was begun on July 1,
1980. The Workers® Compensation Pool
provides statutory benefits pursuant to the
provisions of the Connecticut Workers’
Compensation Act. The coverage 1s a
guaranteed cost program. The premium for each
of the policy periods from July 1, 2014 through
July 1, 2015 and July 1, 2013 through July I,
2014 was $66,000 and $63,000, respectively.

8. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various operating leases for
office space and office equipment, which totaled
$294,000 and $352,000 for fiscal years 2014
and 2013, respectively.



The Authority also has agreements with various
municipalities for payments in lieu of taxes
(“"PILOT™) for personal and real property. For
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
, the PILOT paymeunts, which are included in the
solid waste operations in the accompanying
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in
nel position, totaled $ 3,304,000 and
$3,708,000, respectively. The City of Hartford
PILOT agreement for the CSWS was effective
as of November 27, 2013. Future minimum
rental commitments under non-cancelable
operating leases and future PILOT payments as
of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Lease PILOT
Fiscal Year Amount Amount

(5000) ($000)
2015 396 2,544
2016 207 1,088
2017 17 1,133
2018 135 35
2019 15 35
Thereafter 120 280
Total $ 770 § 5115

The Authority has executed contracts with the
operators/contractors of the resources recovery
facilities, regional recycling centers, transfer
stations, and landfills containing various terms
and conditions expiring through November
2015. Generally, operating charges are derived
from various factors such as tonnage processed,
energy produccd, and certain pass-through

operating costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating
charges, including transition costs incurred in
connection with a new Operations and
Management Agreements effective in 2012 (*O
& M Agreements”) to operate the South
Meadows waste encrgy facility , included in
solid waste operations and maintenance and
utilities expense for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 was as follows:
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Project 2014 2013
($000) ($000)
Connecticut Solid 3 46,208 S 30439
Waste System
Mid-Connecticut (793) 19,703
Southeast 20,349 21,190
SouthWest 12,907 12.894
Property 1,054 883
Landfill 750 543
Recycling 576
Wallngford
Total 3 80475 § 86228

There are no construction contracts executed
during fiscal year 2014,

9. OTHER FINANCING

The Authority served as a conduit issuer for
several bonds pursuant to bond resolutions to
fund the construction of waste processing
facilities built and operated by independent
contractors. The only bonds that remain
outstanding relate to the Authority’s Southcast
project. The revenue bonds were issued by the
Authority Lo lower the cost of borrowing for the
contractor/operator of the projects. The
Authority was not involved in the construction
activities, and construction requisitions by the
contractor were made from various trustee

accounts. See note 1A for additional
information on the structure of Southeast
project.

Tl A

The Authority is not obligated for the repayment
of debt on these issues other than the revenues
of Southeast project. In the event of default, and
except in cases where the State has a contingent
liability, the payment of debt is not guaranteed
by the Authority or the State. Therefore, the
Authority does not record the assets and
liabilities related to these bond issues on its
financial statements. The principal amounts of
these bond issues outstanding at June 30, 2014
are as follows:



Project Amount
{S000)
Southeast -
1992 Series A - Corp. Credit $ 30,000
2001 Series A - Covanta
Southeastern Connecticut
Company - 1 6,750
2001 Series A - Covanta
Southeastern Connecticut
Company - 1I 0,730
2010 Series A - Project Refunding 11.293
Total S 54,795

11. STATE PUBLIC ACTS

During FY 2014, The Authority implemented
certain actions mandated by the State of
Connecticut in its Public Act 13-247 and
Section 99 of Public Act 13-184. These acts
required the Authority to transfer all legally
required obligations resulting from the closure
of the Authority’s landfills located in Hartford,
Ellington, Waterbury, Wallingford and Shelton
to the State’s Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection (DEEP), and to
transfer up to $35 million of the Authority’s
resources to the State, to be credited to the
resources of the State's General Fund, for the
fiscal year ending June, 30, 2014.  The
Authority’s closure obligations for the Hartford
Landfill were not transferred.

The transfer of legal obligations resulting from
the closure of landfills was addressed by a
Memorandum of Understanding  (“MOU™)
between the Authority and DEEP. The MOU
became effective April 24, 2014 at which point
in time DEEP began reimbursing the Authority
for all post closure care and maintenance work
at all landfills other than Hartford and the
parties began a transition process to assign
vendor contracts for the performance of landfill
post closure care work to DEEP and to assign
federal and state licenses, permits and orders
(“Authorizations”) related to the landfills to
DEEP. As of June 30, 2014, the Authority
continues to perform landfill post closure work
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at these four landfills subject to reimbursement
by DEEP pending assignment of vendor
contracts, and by August 7, 2014 all solid waste
Authorizations concerning the landfills had been
transferred to DEEP. As of June 30, 2014 the
Hartford landfill has not been certified as closed
and the Authority has not entered the post-
closure care period for this landfill. DEEP will
assume the obligation to reimburse the
Authority for all post-closure care work for
Hartford as of the date the Authority completes
its landfill closure work and submits its Closure
Certification Report to DEEP. The transition of
any vendor contracts and Authorizations
concerning the Hartford landfill will begin as of
the date DEEP certifies the Hartford landfill as
closed. While the Authority is no longer
responsible for the post-closure care of its
landfills, the Public Act and related MOU did
not result in the transfer of any real property or
infrastructure constituting Capital Assets of the
Authority’s Landfill Division.

The transfer of up to $35 million of the
Authority’s resources to the State as required by
Public Act 13-184 was addressed by resolution
of the Authority’s Board of Directors.  The
Authority reccived written confirmation from
the State that the transfer of $31 million will
fully satis{y the requirements of Public Act 13-
184 and the Board directed the transfer of $31
million in stages based on the occurrencc of
certain relevant milestones that included i)
execution of the MOU, ii) issuance of a
purchase order providing for reimbursement of
the Authority’s ongoing work during the
transition period, iii) transfer of certain
Authorizations, iv) termination of certain trust
agreements, and V) action required by certain
local government policy boards. As of June 30,
2014, all of these milestones have been achieved
and the Authority has transferred $31 million to
the State.

The implementation of Public Acts 13-247 and
13-184 is reflected on the Authority’s Financial
Statements as of June 30, 2014 as a liquidation
of $31 million in trust and reserve funds
previously held as financial assurance for post
closure care obligations, a write off of long term
liabilities associated with such post closure care



obligations, and recognition of non-operating
revenue representing the difference between
such funds and labilities. See Note 4 for
additional information.

12. CONTINGENCIES

Mid-Connecticut Project

On October 7, 2009, The Metropolitan District
Commuission (“MDC") initiated an arbitration
proceeding against the Authority seeking a
declaratory judgment that the Authority is
responsible  for certain  post-employment
benefits and other costs that MDC may incur
following the cxpiration of its contract for the
operation of a portion of the Mid-Connecticut
Project on December 31, 2011. The MDC did
not specify the amount of its monetary claim in
its demand for a declaratory judgment in
arbitration; however, the MDC subsequently
asserted an amended demand for arbitration
based on similar underlying legal arguments and
asserting a claim for unspecified damages. On
February 26, 2013, MDC also filed an
application for a prejudgment remedy (the "PJR
Application™), asserting that an attachment or
garnishment of $47 million, or more, is
necessary to secure a remedy for its claims.
MDC’s application acknowledged, however,
that it had only actually expended $2.1 million
of its alleged $47 million claimed obligation.
On April 1, 2013, the Authoerity filed a motion
to dismiss MDC's PJR Application, which was
granted on October 1, 2013. On October 22,
2013, MDC filed a new application for a
prejudgment remedy, seeking an attachment of
CRRAs assets to secure an alleged $52 million
obligation, The Authority filed a motion to
dismiss the application on November 8, 2013;
the court has not yet ruled on the motion. The
parties are curently engaged in arbitration
hearings on the question of liability only;
testimony is anticipated to conclude in October
2014, If there is a determination of liability,
additional discovery and arbitration hearings
will be required. On February 7, 2012, the
Authority sent letters to all Mid-Connecticut
Project municipalities advising them that, in the
event that the Authority is ultimately determined
to be responsible for any portion of MDC's
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claimed costs, each municipality will be
responsible for their pro rata share of such costs.

and 1s
IS

vigorously defending against the MDC
demands. At this time, the outcome of this
arbitration is uncertain.

In March 2013, Tremont Public Advisors filed a
complaint against the Authority in Connecticut
Superior Court, claiming that the Authority
illegally awarded a contract for Municipal
Government Liaison Services and violated
Connecticut’s  Antitrust  Act, and seeking
injunctions, damages, interest, and attorneys’
fees and costs. The Authority denies the
allegations and has asserted several defenses.
On Jamuary 21, 2014, the Authority filed a
motion to dismiss the complaint, which is
pending. Limited discovery is ongoing.

The Anthority has
(L sES IR 0411 o) [als

VLY

CSWS

The Municipal Solid Waste Management
Agreement {"MSA™) between the Authority and
the City of Waterbury expired on June 30, 2013.
On July 30, 2013, the City underpaid the
Authority's invoice for June waste disposal
services, indicating that it disputed the
remainder of the invoice. On May 30, 2014, the
Authority filed a Demand for Arbitration,
alleging breach of contract, and claiming
$240,468.41 in damages, together with late
payment charges and costs of collection. The
parties have agreed to attempt to mediatc the
dispute on September 16, 2014,

Bridgeport Project
T the aacle 100N, tha AsithAsitsr svrna vinsnad aa
11 Ll wall l] LA 7% 0y LW i IL)‘ Yy Cl lldlllvue Ao

a Potentially Responsible Party in the now-
combined federal and State of New Jersey suits
to recover the costs of remediation of the
landfill known as Combe Fill South. The
Authority’s liability was substantially resolved
in the spring of 2009 as a result of a mediated
global settlement. However, one of the settling
parties is pursuing a contribution action against
certain  non-settling entities.  The Authority
continues to monitor remaining case activities to
the extent they may implicate the Authority.



Other Issues; Subsequent Claims; Resolved
Matters; Unasserted Claims and Assessments

The MDC has included in several monthly
invoices to the Authority a c¢laim for
reimbursement of certain MDC legal and
consulting fees. The Authority has disputed
these charges on the grounds that they are not
related to the MDC’s obligation to operate,
maintain, and repair the WPF during the term of
the Authority-MDC Agreement.

In January 2006, the Authority’s pollution
liability insurance carrier, American
International ~ Specialty  Lines  Insurance
Company (“AISLIC™) settled with numerous
commercial and residential neighbors of the
Hartford Landfill who had filed suit against the
Authority in 2001, claiming that the Authority
negligently maintained and operated its Hartford
Landfill and that the Harford Landfill
constituted a public nuisance. On May 4, 2006,
AISLIC initiated a declaratory judgment action
in federal district court seeking a declaration
that AISLIC is not obligated to indemnify the
Authority in connection with the settled lawsuit
and that AISLIC should be awarded the amount
it spent on defense and indemnification of the
Authority. This matter was settled in November
2013.

On March 31, 2009, the Authority submitted a
timely water discharge renewal application
seeking the re-issuance of the Authority's
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (“NPDES") Permit to the Connecticut
Department of Environmental Protection, now
known as the Connecticut Department of Energy
and Environmental Protection ("DEEP™).
Review of the Authority’s permit renewal
application by DEEP is ongoing, including
whether the current location, design,
construction and capacity of the cooling water
intake structures at the Authority’s South
Meadows Facility represents best technology
available (“BTA™) for minimizing adverse
environmental impact and, if not, what
additional operational and/or technological
measures reflecting BTA will need to be
implemented at the Facility.
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The Authority is also named in two injury
complaints related to operation and maintenance
of the waste to energy facility in South
Meadows. The Authority has demanded
indemnification from these complaints pursuant
to the terms of the Agreement between the
Authority and NAES Corporation providing for
the operation and maintenance of this facility.

The Authority is subject to numerous federal,
state and local environmental and other laws and
regulations and management belicves it is in
substantial  compliance  with all  such
governmental laws and regulations.

13. RESTATEMENT

During 2013, the Authority exercised its right to
terminate an operations and maintenance service
agreement for its recycling center. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Authority paid the operator
approximately $2.9 million for unrecovered
investment costs and took ownership of
equipment utilized by the contractor to opcrate
the recycling center.

The Authority initially accrued for, and
expensed, the contract termination payment
during the year ended June 30, 2013. During
2014, the Authority determined that the contract
termination payment was for equipment to be
used in the recycling center and not a contract
cost. Accordingly, the Authority has restated its
financial statements for June 30, 2013 for the
correction of the error as follows:



As Previously As
Reported Adjustient Restated
Balance Sheet
Depreciable capital assets, net $ 81,601 $ 2,916 $ 84,517
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 111,943 $ 2916 $ 114,859
Total net position $ 165332 § 2916 % 168,248
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Solid waste operations $ 102,110 §  (2916) § 99,194
Total operating expenses $ 130,114  $  (2916) § 127,198
Opemting loss $ (10248) $ 2916 § (7.332)
Change in net position $ (1,169 $ 2016 % (8,253)
14. NEW ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AND
NOT YET ADOPTED

GASB Statement No. 68, dccounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. 'The
primary objective of this statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting
by state and local governments for pensions.
It also improves information provided by
state and local governmental employers
about financial support for pensions that is
provided by other entities. This statement
replaces the requirements of Statements No.
25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50,
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pension \plaua that arc administered through
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter
jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain
criteria. The requirements of statements No.
25 and No. 50 rcmain applicable to pension
plans that are not administered through
trusts covered by the scope of this
statement.

The scope of this statement also addresses
accounting and financial reporting for
pensions that are provided to the employees
of state and local governmental employers
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through pension plans that are administered
through  trusts  that have  certain
characteristics as defined in the statement.
It establishes standards for measuring and
recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources,
and expense/expenditures,  For defined
benefit pensions, this statement identifies
the methods and assumptions that should be
used o project benefit payments, discount
projected benefit payments to their actuarial
present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note
disclosure and required supplementary
information requirements about pensions
also arc addressed. This statement is
effective for periods beginning after June
15, 2014, with early implementation
encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 69, Government
Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations.  This statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards
related to government combinations and
disposals of government operations,
including mergers and acquisitions. This
statement requires disclosures to be made
that will enable financial statement users to
evaluate the nature and financial effect of
those transactions.  This statement is
effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2013, with carlier application
encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 70, Adccounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. This statement will
requirc a government that extends a
nonexchange  financial  guarantee to
recognize a liability when qualitative factors
and historical data indicate that it is more
likely than not thai the guverueni will be
required to make a paymeat on the
guarantee. An obligation guaranteed in a
nonexchange transaction will need to be
reported until it is legally relcascd as an
obligor. This statement is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2013, with
earlier application encouraged.

GASB  Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition  for  Contributions  Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.



This statement addresses an issue regarding
the application of the transition provisions
of statement No. 68, Accounting and
Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to
amounts associated with contributions, if
any, made by a state or local government
employer or non-employer -contributing
entity to a defined benefit pension plan after
the measurement date of the government’s
beginning net pension liability. The
provisions of the statement are to be
adopted simultaneously with statement No.

68.

Management has not estimated the extent
of the potential impact of these statements
on the Authority’s financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING / TAX / ADVISORY

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audh of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
Harttord, Connecticut

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Materials Innovation
and Recycling Authority (Authority), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2014,
and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon

dated September 24, 2014,
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors
Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
Page 52

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter dated
September 24, 2014.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely 1o describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resulls of thal testing, and not to provide an opinion on lhe effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wilh
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
p—
Saphdsi e f

New York, New York
September 24, 2014
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Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
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Statistical
Section

This Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report — Statistical Section — presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Authority’s

overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the readers understand
and assess how the Authority’s financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the readers understand
and assess the Authority’s significant revenue sources.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the readers understand and assess
the affordability of the Authority's current levels of outstanding debt and its
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic Information

The schedule offers demographic indicators to help the readers understand
the environment within which the Authority's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain information to help the readers understand and assess
the Authority’s significant expense sources and how the information in the
Authority's financial report relates to the services the Authority provides and
the activities it performs.
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